
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL
RHONDDA CYNON TAF

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

GWŶS I GYFARFOD O'R CYNGOR

C.Hanagan 
Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Y Pafiliynau 
Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian 
Cwm Clydach, CF40 2XX

Dolen gyswllt: Hannah Williams - Uned Busnes y Cyngor  (01443 424062) 

DYMA WŶS I CHI i gyfarfod o Grŵp LLYWIO'R CABINET AR FATERION YR 
HINSAWDD yn cael ei gynnal ar Dydd LLUN, 16EG TACHWEDD, 2020 am 
2.00 PM.

Caiff Aelodau nad ydyn nhw'n aelodau o'r pwyllgor  ac aelodau o'r cyhoedd gyfrannu 
yn y cyfarfod ar faterion y cyfarfod er bydd y cais yn ôl doethineb y 
Cadeirydd. Gofynnwn i chi roi gwybod i Wasanaethau Democrataidd erbyn Dydd 
Iau, 12 Tachwedd 2020 trwy ddefnyddio'r manylion cyswllt uchod, gan gynnwys rhoi 
gwybod a fyddwch chi'n siarad Cymraeg neu Saesneg.

AGENDA
Tudalennau

1. DATGAN BUDDIANT 
Derbyn datganiadau o fuddiannau personol gan Aelodau, yn unol â gofynion y 
Cod Ymddygiad.

Nodwch:
1. Mae gofyn i Aelodau ddatgan rhif a phwnc yr agendwm mae eu 

buddiant yn ymwneud ag ef a mynegi natur y buddiant personol 
hwnnw; a  

2. Lle bo Aelodau'n ymneilltuo o'r cyfarfod o ganlyniad i ddatgelu buddiant 
sy'n rhagfarnu, mae rhaid iddyn nhw roi gwybod i'r Cadeirydd pan 
fyddan nhw'n gadael.

2. COFNODION 
Cadarnhau cofnodion cyfarfod Grŵp Llywio'r Cabinet ar Faterion yr Hinsawdd 
a gynhaliwyd ar 28 Ionawr 2020 yn rhai cywir.

5 - 10



3. ASEDAU NATURIOL 
Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth - Iechyd a Diogelwch y 
Cyhoedd, a'r Gymuned, sy'n rhoi cyfle i'r Grŵp Llywio drafod materion sy'n 
ymwneud ag Asedau Naturiol a'r argyfyngau o ran yr hinsawdd a 
bioamrywiaeth.

11 - 24
4. CYNLLUNIAU DATBLYGU STRATEGOL A LLEOL - EU POLISÏAU 

A'U HYMRWYMIADAU I SICRHAU BOD ISADEILEDD TAI, 
TRAFNIDIAETH A BUSNES YN LLEIHAU EU HÔL-TROED CARBON. 
Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr - Materion Ffyniant a Datblygu, sy'n nodi 
gofynion y Cynllun Datblygu Strategol (SDP) a'r Cynllun Datblygu Lleol 
Diwygiedig (CDLl) mewn perthynas â pholisïau ac ymrwymiadau i leihau'r Ôl-
troed Carbon.

25 - 36
5. LLEIHAU'R DEFNYDD O BLASTIGAU UN-TRO YN HOLL 

GONTRACTAU AC ADEILADAU'R CYNGOR 
Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr, Adnoddau Dynol, sy'n rhoi gwybod i'r Grŵp 
Llywio  am y cynnydd a wnaed mewn perthynas â'r archwiliad manwl ar y 
categorïau gwariant hynny lle mae plastigau un-tro'n cael eu defnyddio ar hyn 
o bryd; a Chynllun Gweithredu sydd â'r nod o leihau neu ddileu'r defnydd o 
blastigau un-tro (lle bo hynny'n ymarferol) ym mhob rhan o'r Cyngor erbyn 
diwedd 2020.

37 - 50
6. CAFFAEL CYFLENWADAU A GWASANAETHAU YN LLEOL 

Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr, Adnoddau Dynol, sy'n rhoi diweddariad i 
Grŵp Llywio'r Cabinet ar Faterion yr Hinsawdd ar y gwaith sydd ar y gweill er 
mwyn sicrhau bod y Cyngor yn elwa ar ei drefniadau caffael yn y modd gorau 
posibl.

51 - 56
7. CYNHYRCHU YNNI A MATERION CYSYLLTIEDIG 

Derbyn adroddiad Cyfarwyddwr Materion Eiddo'r Cyngor, sy'n darparu 
diweddariad dros dro o'r sefyllfa o ran gwaith Grŵp Llywio'r Cabinet ar Faterion 
yr Hinsawdd hyd at 30/09/20. Yn dilyn atal gwahanol gyfarfodydd y Cyngor o 
ganlyniad i'r Llifogydd a'r Coronafeirws, nid yw'r Grŵp Llywio'r Cabinet ar 
Faterion yr Hinsawdd wedi cyfarfod ers mis Ionawr 2020. Mae'r Adroddiad 
Diweddaru yma'n nodi manylion y sefyllfa bresennol o ran y gwaith sydd ar y 
gweill ym maes datblygu prosiectau ynni adnewyddadwy a materion 
cysylltiedig eraill.

57 - 68
8. MATERION BRYS 

Trafod unrhyw faterion sydd, yn ôl doethineb y Cadeirydd, yn rhai brys yng 
ngoleuni amgylchiadau arbennig.



Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu

Cylchreliad:-

Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol:
Y Cynghorydd R Lewis, Y Cynghorydd M Webber, Y Cynghorydd  M Norris, 
Y Cynghorydd A Crimmings, Y Cynghorydd S Belzak ac Y Cynghorydd E Webster

Swyddogion:
Chris Bradshaw, Prif Weithredwr
Christian Hanagan, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Chyfathrebu
Nigel Wheeler, Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran – Ffyniant, Datblygu, a Gwasanaethau 
Rheng-flaen
Paul Mee, Cyfarwyddwr – Iechyd a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd, a Gwasanaethau’r 
Gymuned.
Simon Gale, Cyfarwyddwr Materion Ffyniant a Datblygu
Richard Evans, Cyfarwyddwr - Materion Adnoddau Dynol
Barrie Davies, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Cyllid a Digidol
David Powell, Cyfarwyddwr Materion Eiddo’r Cyngor
Lesley Lawson, Rheolwr Cyflawniad

Cynrychiolaeth Allanol:
Cyfeillion y Ddaear
Croeso i'n Coedwig



Tudalen wag



 

 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

 GRŴP LLYWIO'R CABINET AR FATERION YR HINSAWDD 
Cofnodion o gyfarfod y Grŵp Llywio'r Cabinet ar Faterion yr Hinsawdd a gynhaliwyd   Dydd 

Mawrth, 28 Ionawr 2020 am 11.00 am ym Ystafell Bwllgor 1, Y Pafiliynau, Parc Hen Lofa'r 
Cambrian, Cwm Clydach, Tonypandy CF40 2XX. 

 
 

Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol - Grŵp Llywio'r Cabinet ar Faterion yr Hinsawdd Aelodau 
oedd yn bresennol:-:- 

 
 

Y Cynghorydd R Lewis Y Cynghorydd M Webber 
Y Cynghorydd  M Norris Y Cynghorydd E Webster 

 
Cynrychiolwyr Allanol a wahoddwyd i'r Grŵp Llywio 

 
Ms H Richards - Cyfeillion y Ddaear  
Mr I Thomas - Croeso i'n Coedwig 

 
Swyddogion oedd yn bresennol 

 
Mr C Bradshaw, Prif Weithredwr 

Mr N Wheeler, Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran – Ffyniant, Datblygu, a Gwasanaethau Rheng-flaen 
Mr P Mee, Cyfarwyddwr – Iechyd a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd, a Gwasanaethau’r Gymuned. 

Mr D Powell, Cyfarwyddwr Materion Eiddo’r Cyngor 
Ms L Lawson, Rheolwr Cyflawniad 

Mr R Waters, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau Rheng-flaen 
Ms L Davies, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau Diogelwch y Cyhoedd 

Mr C Davies, Rheolwr Materion Ymgynghori a Pholisïau Corfforaethol 
 

18   Croeso ac Ymddiheuriadau  
 

 

 Croesawodd y Cadeirydd bawb i'r cyfarfod a chafodd pawb eu cyflwyno er budd 
y swyddogion newydd.  
 
Daeth ymddiheuriadau am golli'r cyfarfod oddi wrth Gynghorwyr y Fwrdeistref 
Sirol A. Crimmings a S. Belzak. 
 

 

19   Datgan Buddiant  
 

 

 Yn unol â Chod Ymddygiad y Cyngor, doedd dim datganiadau o fuddiant ynglŷn 
â'r agenda.  
 

 

20   Cofnodion  
 

 

 PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo cofnodion cyfarfod y Grŵp Llywio'r Cabinet ar 
Faterion yr Hinsawdd a gynhaliwyd ar 18 Rhagfyr 2019.  
 

 

21   Newid i Drefn yr Agenda  
 

 

 Cytunodd y Grŵp Llywio y byddai'r agenda yn cael ei hystyried mewn trefn 
wahanol yn unol â'r manylion yn y cofnodion isod. 
 

 

Tudalen 5

Agendwm 2



 

 
22   Meithrin Cysylltiadau â'r Gymuned  

 
 

 Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Materion Polisi Corfforaethol ac Ymgynghori yr 
adroddiad, a oedd yn ceisio rhoi gwybod i Grŵp Llywio'r Cabinet ar Faterion yr 
Hinsawdd am y dulliau arfaethedig o ymgysylltu a chyfathrebu â'r gymuned, a 
hynny er mwyn sicrhau bod yr holl randdeiliaid allweddol yn llywio'r gwaith o godi 
ymwybyddiaeth o arfer gorau ac annog trigolion i newid eu hymddygiad. 
 
Cafodd yr Aelodau eu cyfeirio at Adran 5 yr adroddiad, sy'n nodi'r prif feysydd 
sydd angen ffocws: 
A) Cyfathrebu a gweithgarwch ar y Cyfryngau Cymdeithasol; 
B) Datblygu ymgyrch newid ymddygiad; 
C) Hwyluso Cyfranogiad; 
D) Ymgysylltu â chenedlaethau'r dyfodol. 
 
Cynigiodd y swyddog y dylai porth rhyngrwyd Newid Hinsawdd Canolig gael ei 
sefydlu, fel bod modd cyfeirio trigolion a rhanddeiliaid ato i godi ymwybyddiaeth 
o brosiectau cyfredol, arfer gorau, achlysuron lleol a chenedlaethol, ac 
astudiaethau achos.   
 
Yn Adran 5.18 yr adroddiad, roedd rhestr o grwpiau ac unigolion sydd wedi'u 
nodi'n rhai i ymgysylltu a nhw yn rhan o'r agenda ehangach. Nododd y swyddog 
y byddai'n hanfodol ehangu'r rhestr yma a chreu cronfa ddata o'r 
grwpiau/unigolion allweddol sy'n hyrwyddo newid ac yn cael effaith yn lleol.  
 
Rhoddodd y swyddog enghraifft i'r grŵp llywio o'r gwaith ymgysylltu a 
gynhaliwyd gyda thrigolion mewn perthynas â Chynllun Corfforaethol y Cyngor. 
Soniodd am ddosbarthu 'pecynnau cymryd rhan' i rai unigolion, sy'n rhoi 
cyfrifoldeb iddyn nhw dros ymgysylltu â grwpiau llai.  
 
O ran cyfathrebu newid mewn ymddygiad, rhoddodd y swyddog enghreifftiau o 
ymgyrchoedd ailgylchu proffil uchel blaenorol, sydd wedi hyrwyddo newid 
cymdeithasol cadarnhaol yn y Fwrdeistref.  
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i'r swyddog am yr adroddiad trylwyr, a nododd fod angen 
i'r Cyngor, Grwpiau Amgylcheddol a'r gymuned ehangach weithio gyda'i gilydd.  
 
Soniodd un cynrychiolydd am y prosiect 'skyline vision' Croeso i'n Coedwig, sy'n 
ceisio nodi sut mae modd i gymuned newid er mwyn lleihau ei hôl-troed carbon, 
a dywedodd y byddai'r wybodaeth yn cael ei rhannu yn dilyn y cyfarfod. Aeth y 
Grŵp Llywio ati i gydnabod y byddai newidiadau bach a datrysiadau arloesol, fel 
nodi maint ôl-troed carbon unigolion a'i leihau, yn grymuso trigolion ac yn eu 
galluogi i gymryd perchenogaeth. Cyfeiriodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd at y 4000 o 
fylbiau a blannwyd gan grŵp cymunedol yn Rhydfelen. Roedd hyn wedi cyfrannu 
at y newid, a hefyd wedi bod o fudd cadarnhaol i'r cyfranogwyr. 
 
Cafodd y Grŵp Llywio sgwrs am addysg a'r effaith gadarnhaol y mae modd i'r 
cyfryngau cymdeithasol a'r porth rhyngrwyd ei chael ar bobl ifainc.   
 
Roedd y Cynrychiolwyr Allanol yn gefnogol o'r dull ac yn falch o gyfeirio'r Cyngor 
ar grwpiau llai, a oedd wedi dangos ymrwymiad i wneud gwahaniaeth. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: 
 

 

Tudalen 6



 

1. Cefnogi'r pedwar maes ffocws arfaethedig: 
a) Cyfathrebu a gweithgarwch ar y Cyfryngau Cymdeithasol 
b) Datblygu ymgyrch newid ymddygiad 
c) Hwyluso Cyfranogiad 
d) Ymgysylltu â chenedlaethau'r dyfodol; 

2. Cytuno i'r swyddogion weithio mewn partneriaeth â rhanddeiliaid a 
grwpiau amgylcheddol allweddol er mwyn datblygu'r dull yma ar gyfer y 
dyfodol, a gofyn iddyn nhw gydweithio â ni ar weithgarwch cyfathrebu ac 
ymgysylltu penodol; 

3. Derbyn diweddariadau ar y cynnydd mewn cyfarfodydd yn y dyfodol. 
 
 

23   Trafnidiaeth – sut ydyn ni'n lleihau ein hallyriadau carbon a newid ein 
dulliau teithio?  
 

 

 Rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth, Gwasanaethau'r Rheng Flaen wybod i'r 
Grŵp Llywio am y sefyllfa gyfredol o ran allyriadau carbon a thrafnidiaeth, er 
mwyn nodi'r camau y mae modd eu cymryd i leihau'r allyriadau hyn. 
 
Nododd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth fod twf trafnidiaeth ynghlwm â'r economi, a 
phan mae'r economi'n tyfu, mae'r galw o ran teithio'n cynyddu hefyd. Soniodd y 
Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth am gynlluniau uchelgeisiol Llywodraeth Cymru o ran 
datgarboneiddio, sy'n cynnwys buddsoddi mewn cerbydau trydan fel ceir, tacsis 
a bysys. Eglurwyd fod camau y mae modd i gynghorau unigol eu cymryd i 
ddatgarboneiddio trafnidiaeth, ac y bydd camau o'r fath yn fwy effeithiol os cân 
nhw eu darparu o dan strategaeth gydlynol ar lefel ranbarthol neu genedlaethol, 
lle mae pawb yn canolbwyntio ar wireddu'r un nod. Cafodd y Grŵp Llywio wybod 
fod RhCT yn rhagweithiol o ran hybu prosiectau sy'n benodol ar gyfer RhCT, tra 
hefyd yn gweithio ar lefel ranbarthol drwy Fargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth 
Caerdydd ac Awdurdod Trafnidiaeth Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd. 
 
Tynnodd y swyddog sylw'r Aelodau at Adran 3.11 yr adroddiad, sy'n amlinellu 
rhestr o raglenni ymgysylltu amrywiol RhCT sydd â goblygiadau cadarnhaol o 
ran lleihau allyriadau. Roedd y rhain yn cynnwys y Rhaglen Gwneud Defnydd 
Gwell, Llwybrau Diogel i'r Ysgol/Llwybrau Diogel mewn Cymunedau, Ehangu 
Coridorau, Gorfodi Parcio, Gwasanaethau bws â chymhorthdal 
Parcio a Theithio a Teithio Llesol 
 
Aeth y swyddog ymlaen i ddarparu manylion ynglŷn â chyfleoedd yn y dyfodol ar 
gyfer RhCT i'r Grŵp Llywio: 

• Metro -   
• Cerbydau Trydanol ac Isadeiledd Gwefru 
• Rheoli'r Galw 

 
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth, o ganlyniad i'r adroddiad, fod 
Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gwahodd ceisiadau i ddatblygu isadeiledd ar gyfer 
Cerbydau Allyriadau Isel Iawn yn ogystal â menter anogol sy'n canolbwyntio ar 
dacsis a cherbydau llogi preifat. Mae Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon 
Taf yn gweithio gyda Bargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd/Awdurdod 
Trafnidiaeth Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd i ddiogelu'r cyllid yma, gyda chyllid 
cyfatebol gan Fargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd. Cafwyd 
trafodaethau ynglŷn â'r dull rhanbarthol o gyflwyno isadeiledd Cerbydau 
Trydanol ar draws safleoedd strategol sy'n eiddo i'e Cyngor yn ogystal â'r 
strategaeth i sicrhau bod pob tacsi yn gerbyd trydanol erbyn dyddiad targed 

 

Tudalen 7



 

Llywodraeth Cymru 2028. Er bod y Grŵp Llywio'n teimlo'n gadarnhaol am y 
fenter yma, cododd y grŵp nifer o bryderon, yn arbennig ynglŷn â'r isadeiledd 
cyfredol yn RhCT a'r heriau a fyddai ynghlwm â gosod mannau gwefru ar 
strydoedd cul gyda thai teras. Cytunodd y Cyfarwyddwr Ffyniant, Datblygu, a 
Gwasanaethau Rheng-flaen â hyn, gan nodi y byddai hi'n synhwyrol i ni osgoi 
cymryd unrhyw gamau sylweddol ar hyn o bryd. Yn hytrach, dylen ni edrych ar 
danwyddau mwy cynaliadwy wrth i'r farchnad ar gyfer ceir addas dyfu ac wrth i 
ddatrysiadau mwy addas i'r diben ddod i'r amlwg. O ran cerbydau fflyd y Cyngor, 
dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cyfadran wrth y Grŵp Llywio fod canlyniadau ymarfer 
costau yn dangos ei bod hi'n rhatach llogi cerbydau yn hytrach na'u prynu. O 
ganlyniad i hyn, bydd y Cyngor yn ceisio llogi cerbydau fflyd yn y tymor byr. 
Ychwanegodd bod y Cyngor wrthi'n arbrofi gyda dewisiadau hybrid a thrydanol, 
a bydd yn monitro'r potensial ar gyfer datrysiadau tanwydd eraill ar gyfer 
cerbydau fflyd mwy. 
 
Aeth y Grŵp Llywio ymlaen i drafod y Strategaeth Dacsis ar gyfer De-ddwyrain 
Cymru, gyda'r swyddog yn cadarnhau y byddai pwyllgor Trwyddedu'r Cyngor yn 
ystyried hyn yn ei gyfarfod ym mis Ebrill 2020. Cyfeiriodd y Cyfarwyddwr 
Gwasanaeth, Diogelu'r Cyhoedd, at y ffaith nad oes modd i gerbyd fod yn dacsi 
am fwy na deng mlynedd yn RhCT, a ph'un a oes angen adolygu hyn er mwyn 
ystyried y camau llai ar gyfer bwrw'r targed o ran allyriadau erbyn 2028. Aeth y 
Grŵp Llywio ymlaen i gydnabod fod masnachu a thopograffi yn y cymoedd yn 
wahanol iawn i Gaerdydd, a bod fflyd dacsis RhCT yn nes at gydymffurfio â 
rheoliad Euro 6.  
 
Yn ogystal â hynny, o dan y pennawd Rheoli'r Galw, cyfeiriodd y Cyfarwyddwr 
Gwasanaeth at Bapur Gwyn Caerdydd ar gyfer trafnidiaeth, a allai arwain at godi 
tâl am yrru yn y brifddinas. Nododd y Grŵp Llywio bryderon ynglŷn â'r 
annhegwch posibl gan fod trigolion Caerdydd yn cael eu heithrio, a thrafododd y 
grŵp yr angen i ymgynghori ar faterion o'r fath er mwyn sicrhau y bydda unrhyw 
drefn godi tâl yn deg i bawb, ac y byddai buddsoddiadau mewn trafnidiaeth o 
ganlyniad i dâl o'r fath yn digwydd ar lefel ranbarthol. 
 
Mewn perthynas â'r Metro, holodd un Aelod am yr amserlen o ran cwblhau'r 
gwaith, a nododd y swyddog y byddai hyn yn digwydd yn 2022/2023. Siaradodd 
y Grŵp Llywio yn gadarnhaol am y Metro, gan gytuno y byddai'n gyfle 
cynaliadwy i ddefnyddwyr ceir newid i drafnidiaeth gyhoeddus ar gyfer rhai 
teithiau. Cytunodd yr Aelodau fod y Metro yn ddatblygiad arwyddocaol, serch 
hynny, yr her yw integreiddio'r cynllun â'r gwasanaeth bws a'r Cynllun Teithio 
Llesol. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: 
 

1. Nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad. 
 
 

24   Pa gamau y mae modd eu cymryd yn yr ardaloedd rheoli ansawdd aer, er 
mwyn sicrhau bod ansawdd aer yn gwella ledled y Fwrdeistref Sirol?  
 

 

 Gyda chymorth cyflwyniad PowerPoint, cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Diogelwch yr 
Amgylchedd a Safonau Tai yr adroddiad i'r Aelodau, gyda'r bwriad o drafod y 
camau y mae modd eu cymryd mewn Ardaloedd Rheoli Ansawdd Aer, a hynny 
er mwyn sicrhau bod ansawdd aer yn gwella ledled y Fwrdeistref Sirol. 
 
Rhoddwyd enghreifftiau i'r Grŵp Llywio o'r 16 ardal Rheoli Ansawdd Aer a 

 

Tudalen 8



 

nodwyd yn Rhondda Cynon Taf ac roeddent yn falch o nodi'r farn bod y rhan 
helaeth o'r Fwrdeistref yn profi ansawdd aer da a bod yr ardaloedd hynny a 
nodwyd yn fannau ynysig. Clywon nhw y gall amgylchiadau lleol penodol iawn 
arwain at lefelau Nitrogen Deuocsid a allai fod yn uwch nag Amcan Ansawdd 
Aer.  
 
Aeth yr Aelodau ati i gydnabod bod potensial i Newid Hinsawdd gael effaith 
negyddol ar ansawdd aer yn y dyfodol a bod angen gweithredu i ddarparu 
atebion cynaliadwy. 
 
Cyfeiriwyd y Grŵp Llywio at Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad, lle rhestrwyd y Cynlluniau 
Gweithredu Ansawdd Aer unigol. Ystyriwyd bod nifer o'r gwelliannau yn 
ymarferol o ran cyflawni gwelliant tymor byr mewn ansawdd aer yn yr Ardaloedd 
Rheoli Ansawdd Aer. Fodd bynnag, roedd y Grŵp Llywio yn cydnabod na 
fyddai'r materion a'r seilwaith cyfredol sy'n gysylltiedig â thrafnidiaeth o fewn 
RhCT yn cefnogi rhai o'r camau cynaliadwy, tymor hir a nodwyd mewn modd 
digonol. Roedd barn y dylid cynnal trafodaethau rhwng Cyfarwyddwr Iechyd a 
Diogelwch y Cyhoedd a Gwasanaethau Cymuned a'r Cyfarwyddwr Ffyniant, 
Datblygu, a Gwasanaethau Rheng-flaen i nodi'r gweithredoedd hyfyw, hirdymor 
o Dabl B yr adroddiad, i'w cynnwys yn Rhaglen Cyfalaf Priffyrdd y Cyngor ar 
gyfer ystyriaeth gan y Cabinet. 
 
Cafwyd trafodaethau ynghylch ymgysylltu â'r gymuned ynglŷn â'r Diwrnod Aer 
Glân, sy'n cael ei gynnal ar 20 Mehefin 2020, a ariennir gan Lywodraeth Cymru 
ac sy'n rhan o'r ymgyrch Diwrnod Aer Glân ehangach ledled y DU. Teimlai'r 
Grŵp Llywio y byddai cyfranogiad y Cyngor yn y fenter yn hyrwyddo neges 
gadarnhaol i'w drigolion ond cytunwyd y byddai angen cyfleu'r neges gywir, boed 
hynny o ran rhannu ceir, beicio i'r gwaith neu blannu coed.  
 
Mewn perthynas â'r cyllid grant, a ddefnyddiwyd i ddarparu gwell goleuadau 
stryd i wasanaethu'r llwybr mynediad teithio llesol i Ysgol Uwchradd Pontypridd, 
cydnabuwyd bod y dull deilliannau amlasiantaeth wedi bod yn hanfodol a'i fod 
wedi bod o fudd i nifer o agendâu, gan gynnwys ymgysylltu lleol, teithio llesol, 
ansawdd aer, newid yn yr hinsawdd a bioamrywiaeth. 
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd  i'r swyddog am yr adroddiad. PENDERFYNWYD: 
 

1. Nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad;  
2. Argymell y canlynol i'r Cabinet: 

I. Parhau i symud ymlaen gyda'r camau tymor byr ac ymarferol a 
nodwyd yn Nhabl B yr adroddiad;  

II. O ystyried amgylchiadau lleol cyfredol, bod y Cyfarwyddwr Iechyd a 
Diogelwch y Cyhoedd a Gwasanaethau Cymuned yn gweithio gyda'r 
Cyfarwyddwr Ffyniant, Datblygu, a Gwasanaethau Rheng-flaen i 
nodi'r gweithredoedd hyfyw, hirdymor o Dabl B yr adroddiad, i'w 
cynnwys yn Rhaglen Gyfalaf Priffyrdd y Cyngor, i'w ystyried gan y 
Cabinet; 

III. Bod y Cyngor yn ceisio ymgysylltu â thrigolion ynglŷn â'r Diwrnod 
Aer Glân, sy'n cael ei gynnal ar 20 Mehefin 2020, a ariennir gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru ac sy'n rhan o'r ymgyrch Diwrnod Aer Glân 
ehangach ledled y DU. 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 9



 

25   Ymgynghoriad ar ddrafft Polisi Rheoli Glaswellt Blodeuog Rhondda Cynon 
Taf  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd y Swyddog Cymorth Technegol adroddiad i'r Grŵp Llywio ar y Polisi 
Rheoli Glaswellt Blodeuog drafft ar gyfer Rhondda Cynon Taf. 
 
Er bod bioamrywiaeth wedi'i golli mewn rhai rhannau o'r DU, clywodd y Grŵp fod 
Rhondda Cynon Taf yn ffodus bod ystod eang o flodau gwyllt brodorol yn tyfu'n 
naturiol yn ei gaeau, ei ymylon a'i goetiroedd.  Mae'r holl blanhigion wedi'u 
haddasu'n berffaith i'r pridd, yr hinsawdd a'r cynefin ac maent yn rhan o'r 
ecosystem sy'n darparu bwyd, nid yn unig i beillwyr ond i lawer o bryfed ac 
anifeiliaid eraill hefyd.   
 
Esboniodd y swyddog mai nod polisi rheoli bioamrywiaeth glaswelltir ac ymylon 
glaswellt arfaethedig Rhondda Cynon Taf yw 'cynyddu arwynebedd a maint 
cynefin glaswelltir cyfoethog blodau gwyllt yn y Fwrdeistref Sirol i gefnogi 
Dyletswydd Bioamrywiaeth y Cyngor a 'Gweithredu dros Natur: Cynllun 
Gweithredu Bioamrywiaeth Lleol'' a thynnodd sylw'r Aelodau at Adran 4.6 yr 
adroddiad, lle amlinellwyd egwyddorion allweddol y Polisi.  
 
Roedd y Grŵp Llywio o blaid y cynigion i gynyddu nifer y safleoedd ym maes 
rheoli blodau gwyllt ac i sefydlu gwefan Bioamrywiaeth, a fyddai’n cael ei 
defnyddio i ymgysylltu â’r gymuned trwy ddarparu gwybodaeth a chodi 
ymwybyddiaeth. Teimlwyd y byddai angen hyrwyddo neges glir i sicrhau bod 
cymunedau'n gwbl ymwybodol bod y glaswellt heb ei dorri yn fesur cadarnhaol. 
O'r herwydd, roedd yr Aelodau o'r farn y byddai angen gosod arwyddion priodol 
ar y safleoedd. 
 
Cafwyd trafodaethau ynghylch yr ymgyrch 'Grab a Rake', a ddyfeisiwyd i 
gynnwys y gymuned leol wrth reoli rhai o'r ymylon glaswellt a adawyd ar gyfer 
bioamrywiaeth. Siaradodd yr Aelodau'n gadarnhaol am gynnwys y gymuned yn 
yr ymgyrch a'r gwerth addysg ychwanegol, gan nodi bod perchnogaeth 
gymunedol yn hanfodol wrth godi ymwybyddiaeth. Siaradodd un Aelod o’r Grŵp 
Llywio am ei phrofiadau ei hun gyda mentrau cymunedol tebyg a chydnabu fod 
cynlluniau llai, cost-effeithiol yn cyfrannu at yr agenda ehangach.  
 
PENDERFYNODD y Grŵp Llywio: 
 

1. Wneud sylwadau ar y Polisi Rheoli Glaswellt Blodeuog drafft, a 
2. Bod adborth a sylwadau Grŵp Llywio'r Cabinet ar Faterion yr Hinsawdd 

yn cael eu hadrodd i'r Cabinet i lywio ei benderfyniad mewn perthynas â'r 
polisi. 

 
 

 

 
 

DAETH Y CYFARFOD I BEN AM 
12.25 pm 

Y CYNGHORYDD RHYS LEWIS 
Cadeirydd. 

 

Tudalen 10



 

 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE CABINET STEERING GROUP 

 

16TH NOVEMBER 2020 

 

NATURE’S ASSETS 

 

JOINT REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR PUBLIC HEALTH, PROTECTION & 

COMMUNITY SERVICES AND THE GROUP DIRECTOR PROSPERITY, 

DEVELOPMENT & FRONTLINE SERVICES IN DISCUSSION WITH THE 

CABINET’S CLIMATE CHANGE CHAMPION (COUNCILLOR RHYS LEWIS) 

 

 

Authors:  Elizabeth Dean, Environment Planner – 01443 562242  
Richard Wistow, Ecologist – 01443 562242 

 

 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to consult the Steering Group on issues relating 

to Nature’s Assets and the climate and biodiversity emergencies. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 It is recommended that the Steering Group: 
 
2.1 Comment on the issues raised in this report, and 

 
2.2 That the feedback and comments of the Climate Change Cabinet Steering 

Group are reported to Cabinet for their consideration. 
 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 To enable the committee to consider the opportunities to maximise carbon 

storage through the natural assets in Rhondda Cynon Taf and advise the 
Cabinet accordingly. The issues raised could have implications for future 
Council policy, priorities and expenditure. 

 

4. BACKGROUND 

 
4.1 The landscape and wildlife of the South Wales Valleys are unique in Southern 

Britain, boasting a huge diversity of habitats and species occurring in close 
proximity and accessible to a large urban population. The biodiversity rich 
landscapes of Rhondda Cynon Taf lie at the centre of these riches, greatly 
valued by local people and a fundamental part of our shared sense of culture, 
place and community1, 2.  

Tudalen 11

Agendwm 3



   

 
4.2 ‘Action for Nature’ is the Plan to protect and enhance the wildlife and 

biodiversity of Rhondda Cynon Taf.  It was initially developed in the late 
1990’s, by a partnership of local people and organisations who had an 
interest, passion and knowledge of local wildlife.  The first plan was published 
in 2000 and it was reviewed by the Partnership in 2009.  The Plan is being 
reviewed again in the light of new legislation and changing circumstances.  
The Partnership continues to be passionate and has continued to evolve, 
regularly welcoming new participants.  Individuals, community groups, 
specialist wildlife organisations (like Butterfly Conservation), local specialist 
groups (e.g. Glamorgan Fungi Group, The Coal Spoil Initiative), Natural 
Resources Wales and the Wildlife Trust for South and West Wales are well 
represented.   

 
4.3 Keep Wales Tidy has provided a long-term link with local community groups, 

many of whom take an active part in the partnership and in practical projects.  
Recent grant funding from Welsh Government to the Welsh Council for 
Voluntary Action (WCVA) has provided a 1.5 day a week post for the 
Partnership in RCT until March 2023.  The grant aims to extend the 
Partnership to include other public bodies like the health sector, business and 
the wider voluntary sector.  Working with Interlink3, the community voluntary 
council for RCT, will be an important part of this project.  

 

4.4 A Rhondda Cynon Taf Strategy for Nature’s Assets 
 
4.4.1 The unique landscape and wildlife assets of Rhondda Cynon Taf means that 

the approach we adopt to the Climate and Nature emergencies should reflect 
these special circumstances.  The Rhondda Cynon Taf landscape is rich in 
priority ‘natural’ habitats, undisturbed soils and peat bogs, all of which are 
important ‘carbon stores’4. We are lucky to have such a wealth of ‘natural’ 
carbon solutions. Across much of the British landscape, these were lost to the 
intensive land management practices of the recent past. In addition, the RCT 
population has one of the lowest ecological footprints in Wales (see appendix 
1). The RCT area is also unusual in that a large area of the County Borough 
is in public ownership, including the Welsh Government forest estate as well 
as many Council owned sites, and large areas of green space associated with 
new developments. Therefore, in Rhondda Cynon Taf we have opportunities 
for natural solutions that are not available in other places.  

 
4.4.2 Measuring carbon storage and the way carbon and methane (a more 

powerful but shorter-lived greenhouse gas) move through the environment is 
extremely complex, and is the subject of much on-going research and 
investigation.  However, the proposed priorities for carbon storage, based on 
basic principles of the carbon cycle (see appendix 2) provide an established 
framework for action. 

 

 Protect existing carbon stores through conservation of our wealth of semi-

natural habitats and undisturbed soils; 

 Restore degraded peatbog and associated habitats; 

 Promote an expansion of urban green infrastructure; 

Tudalen 12



   

 Encourage the expansion of native woodland by natural regeneration; 

 Integrate carbon storage solution with conservation and recognition of our 

existing biodiversity, landscapes and cultural assets. 

4.5 The following sections explore how these priorities can be built into the 
Council’s work. 

 

4.6 Existing carbon stores 

 
4.6.1 More than 70% of Rhondda Cynon Taf is countryside and this is already 

storing a large amount of carbon.  Undisturbed soil, especially soils with a 
high organic matter content with well-established natural or semi-natural 
vegetation cover (which includes not just woodland, but old grasslands, 
heaths, wetlands, bogs and the valleyside ffridd) provides a stable carbon 
store for the long term. These complex habitat mosaics also hold a huge part 
of the richness of RCT’s native biodiversity. We have huge areas of priority 
habitat and most of our agricultural land is permanent pasture.  Losses of this 
carbon will occur when ground is ploughed (e.g. for crops or to reseed grass) 
or if the ground is built over for houses, roads, commercial development etc. 
Protecting those soils from disturbance is a key action; even tree planting can 
release stored soil carbon. 

 
4.6.2. How land is managed can also affect stored carbon.  Removing soil or 

vegetation (including timber), wild fire, soil compaction and soil erosion all 
reduce stored carbon. Re-wetting peaty soils (which contain a lot of carbon 
locked up in organic material), conserving natural priority habitats, allowing 
(where appropriate) natural regeneration and natural processes all promote 
carbon sequestration. 

 
4.6.3 The Local Development Plan plays a significant role in directing development 

to appropriate sites minimising the impact on the wider countryside.  The draft 
National Development Framework published by Welsh Government for 
consultation in 2019 aims to focus new development in existing settlements.  
Welsh Government is also promoting the energy hierarchy that prioritises 
demand reduction, energy conservation and renewable energy sources over 
fossil fuel extraction (coal and gas). 

 

4.7 Peatbog restoration 

 
4.7.1 The most effective way to increase carbon sequestration in RCT would be to 

restore the many degraded peatbog and associated heathland and marshy 
grassland habitats that occur on the relatively flat hilltops above the valleys. 
Where anaerobic (oxygen free) wet conditions can be restored, the actively 
accumulating peatbogs and waterlogged wetlands that develop are very 
effective as carbon stores.  The sphagnum mosses that form the peat in 
peatbogs grows slowly, but the carbon and biomass they accumulate in their 
lives is stored when they die and form peat, and is kept from release back to 
the atmosphere. Ancient peat bogs still safely store carbon originally captured 
from the atmosphere thousands of years ago.  Conversely, peatbogs that are 

Tudalen 13



   

degrading may be releasing carbon into the atmosphere contributing to global 
warming.   

 
4.7.2 The Pen-y-Cymoedd windfarm will provide a 25-year landscape scale 

demonstration project of how to successfully restore a very large area of 
peatbog and associated habitats which lies between and around the turbines.  
£3m from the developers will contribute towards removal of conifer trees, 
blocking ditches, habitat management and monitoring the impact as part of 
the planning consent.  The Heritage Fund has recently announced funding for 
the Lost Peatlands project to extend the scope and involve local communities 
in the restoration.  Other benefits from the peatbog restoration include 
increased water storage in the uplands, potentially reducing flood risk in urban 
areas downstream and reducing wild fire risk in dry summers.  In additional, 
peatbogs are an internationally rare habitat for which the UK and Wales have 
a global duty to protect. As our own version of the rain forests, restoring our 
peat bogs will benefit a unique range of mosses, plants and animals that 
depend upon them. There are at least 6 other long-term peat bog restoration 
schemes in RCT linked to green energy planning permissions. Something in 
excess of 700 hectares of peat bog restoration is achievable in this way. In 
addition, Natural Resources Wales (NRW) are also undertaking two peatbog 
restoration projects on the forest estate in Rhondda Cynon Taf at Mynydd 
Ton and Castell Nos. There is huge potential to undertake more of this work 
and an urgency to commence this in areas where the current forestry is 
leading to significant degradation of the remnant peatlands4.  

 

4.8 Urban Green Infrastructure 

 
4.8.1 Inevitably, carbon storage opportunities are more restricted in urban areas but 

net gains are more likely to be achieved.  Urban greening, often called ‘Green 
Infrastructure’ can offer multiple benefits to residents (aesthetics, air quality, 
play space, reduced flooding, active travel etc.) as well as storing carbon.  
Managing urban green infrastructure to maintain stored carbon and the other 
benefits will also be important and some of the challenges this poses are 
considered in s4.13 below.   

 
4.8.2 Rhondda Cynon Taf has some of the highest urban tree canopy cover in 

Wales (RCT average 18.5% in 2013, Wales 16.3%) but surveys by NRW 
show that we are losing larger trees from the Victorian and Edwardian era5.  
Some built up areas have lower levels of tree cover (e.g. Brynna/ Llanharan is 
below 10%) and these should be the priority for expanding cover.  In addition, 
many of our Parks and Cemeteries have aging tree populations, and 
developing a new urban tree-scape for the twenty-first century will provide 
multiple benefits.  Green Infrastructure to store carbon may not be restricted 
to trees.  Green roofs and walls, gardens, grass playing fields and pitches all 
contribute.  The Wildflower Grassland Management Policy is a recent 
example of the Council’s work in this area where reduced grass cutting and 
biodiversity enhancement for wildflowers and insects provides additional 
environmental and social benefits. The biggest net gains for carbon 
sequestration will be made where soil and growing plants can replace hard 
surfaces for the long term.   

Tudalen 14



   

 
4.8.3 Green/ Blue Infrastructure has a role in reducing flood risk in towns.  Rain 

gardens, porous surfaces and sustainable drainage systems all contribute. 
This is the key driver behind the introduction of Schedule 3 of the Flood and 
Water management Act 2010 which requires all new construction work over 
100m2 to require SuDs approval prior to the commencement on site with a 
view of managing the local flood risk whilst ensuring the naturalisation in the 
urban and rural environments. The requirement also addresses the 
enhancement of water quality, amenity, biodiversity and future maintenance 
of green/ blue infrastructure to ensure future generations can benefit from the 
development.  The website has information related to RCT’s Sustainable 
Drainage Approving Body (SAB).6 A number of schemes for increasing tree 
cover in Parks and Cemeteries and for surface water management have been 
recently submitted for grant funding. Grant funding from schemes such as 
‘Local Places for Nature’ and ‘Greening Public Estates’ provides  
opportunities to use our local parks and cemeteries as a first step towards 
urban tree planting thus enabling local communities to benefit directly by 
improving the urban landscape on their doorstep.   
 

4.8.4 Again, the new LDP will provide opportunities to promote Green 
Infrastructure, as this is a new feature of Welsh Government planning 
guidance (PPW10) published in 2018. 

 

4.9 Expansion of native woodland by natural regeneration 

 
4.9.1 Both the UK and Welsh government have priorities for increasing tree cover 

to sequester more carbon.  Finding ways to meet these targets without 
damaging our existing mosaics of rich biodiversity (and carbon storing) 
habitats will be challenging if we only consider tree planting as a solution.  
Rhondda Cynon Taff already has a much higher level of tree cover (about 
33%) than other parts of Wales or the UK.  Because of the extent and 
diversity of semi-natural habitat in Rhondda Cynon Taf, planting trees in the 
countryside for carbon sequestration may not be appropriate in many 
circumstances. In addition, woodland cover has naturally expanded 
significantly over the past fifty or more years and is likely to continue to 
expand due to the processes of natural regeneration. In RCT low intensity 
land management and our wonderful warm, wet climate provide idea 
conditions for native trees to naturally seed and grow.   

 
4.9.2 Natural regeneration results in ‘the right tree in the right place’ more so than 

planting. The trees that develop are from the local seedbank and are better 
adapted to local conditions.  Regeneration avoids introducing tree diseases, 
requires no plastic tubes or stakes and no fertiliser, herbicides, pesticides, 
watering or strimming and it is free! As woodland cover develops, natural 
regeneration create an important succession of wildlife rich habitats from tall 
grass through to scrub and then woodland. Although initially a little slower, 
natural regeneration quickly catches up and can over-take growth of planted 
trees. Ultimately, natural regeneration realises woodland cover every bit as 
quickly as that achieved by tree planting. 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 

 

Tudalen 15



   

4.9.3 Some areas of Council owned land are let for commercial grazing, but much 
of it is in conservation management, with minimal intervention to natural 
processes.  Appropriate management of Council estate is however important 
if we wish to preserve and conserve the whole range of our flora and fauna. 
Therefore, conservation grazing and biodiversity grass management are key 
biodiversity actions. However, the low intensity management of conservation 
grazing often encourages tree growth around the edges of sites, and 
conservation grass cutting areas often include areas, which regenerate to tree 
cover.  Indeed, the Healthy Hillsides project is a good example of this. Initial 
pilots in Rhondda Cynon Taf are now being extended with funding from 
Welsh Government grant.  Working in collaboration with Natural Resources 
Wales, the Fire Service, the Wildlife Trust and many others, the project aims 
to bring sites at risk of wildfire into management, typically using conservation 
grazing.  Once the risk of fire is removed, woodland cover will significantly 
increase as part of the resulting patchwork of managed habitats. 

 
4.9.4 Managing coal spoil tips to maintain public safety and biodiversity value, in 

particular for pollinators is another challenge.  Bare ground and open flower-
rich habitats are required for many of the insects (including a wealth of 
pollinators) that make these habitats so special, as well as for their unique 
lichen and fungi communities. Colliery spoil sites (including many of the 1970s 
and 80s reclaimed sites) are proving to be biodiversity hot spots with habitat 
and species assemblages that are unique to South Wales. Planting trees on 
colliery spoil may seem to offer opportunities to increase tree cover, but in 
doing so habitats of extremely high biodiversity and immense cultural value 
may be lost. In addition, until tips have aged sufficiently to develop deep 
enough soils, tree planting will require intensive ground preparation and 
importation of growing material; both of which will involve an associated 
carbon footprint, biodiversity loss and potential source of erosion. Tips do 
eventually start to naturally scrub over and develop woodland, but only when 
they have equally naturally developed soils capable of doing so. Managing 
scrub to retain some open ground is now becoming an important 
management consideration on some of our oldest and rarest remaining 
Victorian and Edwardian Tips12. 

 
4.9.5 The proposed changes to public funding for the agriculture industry, post 

Brexit, are likely to see potential for increased woodland cover in RCT.  It 
would be encouraging if ‘natural regeneration’ options were available to 
farmers in appropriate locations such as RCT. It is also hoped that any future 
schemes ensure that there is full recognition of the multiple benefits and value 
of the existing natural and semi-natural habitats within our landscapes. 

 
4.9.6 Commercial forestry, where tree planting is designed to produce a crop that is 

removed, does not increase carbon sequestration.  The aim is to balance tree 
removal with replacement over the life of the crop.  For a given land area, 
carbon sequestration is likely to be slightly negative due to the periodic 
impacts of repeated soil disturbance, drainage and operational inputs.  This 
can still be beneficial where the timber is used as a replacement for more 
carbon-intensive materials, such as coal, bricks or plastic.   

 

Tudalen 16



   

4.10   The water environment 

 
4.10.1 The water environment is critically important for biodiversity and is another of 

‘natures assets’ likely to be affected by climate change.  Flood risk is one of 
the main areas for consideration. 

 
4.10.2 In the 2018 UK climate impact programme, the revised projections 

highlighted the increasing risk of flooding developing as a result of climate 
change.  These new projections for flood risk will be reflected in Welsh 
Government’s draft ‘National strategy for flood and coastal erosion risk 
management in Wales’, due for publication in 2020 and are recognised in 
the outline for the new RCT corporate plan. 

 
4.10.3 The restoration of upland peatbogs for carbon sequestration could also help 

to mitigate increased storm frequency and potentially higher rainfall by 
storing more water in the uplands.  More generally, flood risk can be 
mitigated by changes to land management in catchments upstream of ‘at 
risk’ communities, often called Natural Flood Risk Management (NFM).  The 
Healthy Hillsides project will contribute towards NFM in some places and 
potentially, aspects of Welsh Government proposals for future agriculture 
support may contribute.   

 
4.10.4 The Council produces a Flood Risk Management Strategy13 and this 

promotes NFM in appropriate locations.  An example of a Rhondda Cynon 
Taf led project is at Cwmaman14. Natural Resources Wales have a pilot 
project at Cwmparc with the introduction of woody dams into the stream to 
slow the flow in addition to the peatbog restoration projects mentioned 
above. 

 

4.11   Air Quality 

 
4.11.1 An earlier report has outlined the causes and impacts of poor air quality in 

Rhondda Cynon Taf.  It should be remembered that the natural world is 
affected by air pollution as well as people.  For example, vehicle exhausts (in 
particular nitrogen dioxide) affects soils and contributes to detrimental 
changes in local biodiversity.  This is not well understood. The only detailed 
investigation in RCT relates to European protected sites near the heads of 
the Valleys road.  The use of Green Infrastructure to ameliorate air pollution 
is not straight forward and much bigger impacts will result from reductions in 
vehicle emissions.  Using Green Infrastructure to promote and encourage 
active travel as a substitute for car journeys will contribute to improving air 
quality. The earlier Air Quality report (appendix table c) included examples of 
Green Infrastructure to tackle specific issues. 

 

Tudalen 17



   

4.12   Landscape Strategy linking nature conservation and people  

 
4.12.1 Rhondda Cynon Taf is a fantastic treasure trove of landscapes, habitats, 

flora and fauna. A biodiversity that has a rich cultural basis and is strongly 
tied to the complex geology and geomorphology of the County Borough. 
RCT is also a place with many expert, self-taught naturalists, local 
historians, and environmentally concerned and active people and groups. In 
RCT people and communities live within and surrounded by wildlife-rich 
habitats (the backdrop to our daily lives) and for everyone in RCT nature is 
only a short walk or stroll from their door step.   An initiative that is currently 
being developed aims to link people and groups into a network of 
biodiversity rich sites, and to engage with people to visit, enjoy, record, and 
help to manage these sites to maximise their biodiversity and promote active 
communities.  By developing a ‘landscape scale’ project, large scale funding 
such as the Heritage Lottery might be attracted.  Initial discussions between 
Council staff, the Wildlife Trust, Butterfly Conservation and number of local 
groups has established support for the idea.   

 
4.12.2  Through the implementation of its planning function, the Council has 

secured a significant network of ecological mitigation sites across the County 
Borough. Some of these sites are Council adopted and have land 
management funding associated (from S106 agreements), while others are 
developer or management company owned but have specific S106 
biodiversity management commitments and requirements. There is also a 
network of Council-owned and managed countryside and parks sites, 
cemeteries and land reclamation sites, together with partnership owned 
nature reserves and Community Council sites. When viewed on a map these 
commitments and opportunities form a network of often closely adjacent 
sites, linking communities with the wider countryside. It is a very significant 
resource of both wildlife-rich habitats and an amazing opportunity for people 
to become actively involved in helping to look after, care for, understand and 
interpret their own environment. We already have community groups with 
interest in a specific site who would welcome the opportunity to share 
expertise and volunteers with similar groups both locally and across RCT. In 
addition, there is a network of local people with a keen interest in engaging 
in both their local patch and the ‘bigger picture’. Therefore a priority ‘Action 
for Nature’ action is the development in 2020/21 of a pilot ‘living landscape 
project’ within RCT. If successful, this would see a major new approach to 
biodiversity conservation and community engagement in RCT with long-term 
sustainability and continued biodiversity improvement.  

 

4.13   Challenges 

 
4.13.1 Some of the opportunities to promote Nature’s Assets in the Council’s 

response to Climate Change have been listed above.  New legal duties and 
a higher profile for the Climate and Biodiversity emergencies provide major 
opportunities to move this agenda forward.  These welcome opportunities 
come after a protracted period of funding difficulties for all public bodies. To 
realise these new opportunities consideration needs to be given to staffing 
numbers, expertise and revenue funding, and the need to build capacity in 

Tudalen 18



   

local authorities, Non-Government Organisations (NGOs), the specialist 
voluntary sector, NRW and Welsh Government. Close partnership working 
will be very important. 

 
4.13.2 Current capacity will limit policy development, practical management works 

and engagement with the public and schools.  The Biodiversity Duty 
(reported in Nov) has resulted in a welcome increase in the attention paid to 
ecology across Council services, but this poses challenges when the staff 
resource (1 ecologist) remains the same.  The new sustainable drainage law 
and the new requirement for biodiversity enhancement by planning 
applicants are typical of increasing demand for the ecologist’s input. 

 
4.13.3 If the Council and its partners are to take forward this important agenda and 

develop some of the initiatives identified in this report, there will be a need to 
build resources, expertise and create additional capacity in both the Council 
and other partner organisations.  

 
4.13.4 The Council will explore the potential for a Graduate Officer post to work 

with the ecologist and there may be opportunities for additional Apprentice 
roles to undertake work on countryside and grassland management. There 
are currently proposals to support an apprentice on tree management work 
and an increase in the revenue budget for tree works. The Council may also 
wish to consider additional resources to increase training and to support the 
mapping and data sets required to support the living landscape pilot, 
providing evidence of natural regeneration. 

 
4.13.5 There is demand for increased support for environmental education, 

particularly in schools in Rhondda Cynon Taf.  A graduate post, shared 
between Education and Streetcare is planned to work specifically with 
secondary schools.  Similar provision to support education for sustainable 
development and global citizenship in primary schools may also be required.   

 
4.13.6 Natural Resources Wales have a limited environmental education resource, 

which supports a network of Outdoor Learning Groups (including one for 
RCT and Merthyr) and Keep Wales Tidy promote Eco-Schools, in which 
many RCT schools participate.  The RCT Education and Inclusion Services 
are currently developing a pilot project of up to seven schools that aims to 
enhance school grounds to promote biodiversity and outdoor learning. 

 
4.13.7  In taking forward any recommendations arising from the recommendations 

of the steering group, the Council will need to quantify and consider the 
necessary resource implications. 

 

5.    EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There are no equality or diversity implications as a result of the 

recommendations set out in the report. 
 

 

 

Tudalen 19



   

6.   CONSULTATION / INVOLVEMENT 
 
6.1 This report explores issues, some of which have been discussed by the 

Local Biodiversity Action Plan partnership and specifically with Natural 
Resources Wales.  

 
6.2 The views of this Steering Group will make an important contribution and 

inform the deliberations of Cabinet 
 

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)   
 
7.1 As this report covers a number of new policy areas for the Council, there may 

be financial implications arising from future implementation.  Some projects 
described, such as the ‘Healthy Hillsides’ and ‘Lost Peatland’ projects have 
already obtained grant funding.  There are likely to be some short-term Welsh 
government capital grant opportunities for 2020/21, in particular relating to 
Green Infrastructure. Where no funding is currently available, the Cabinet 
may require additional information before considering whether and how these 
issues should be addressed. 

 

8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  
 
8.1 The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 is relevant.  Part One covers the 

Sustainable Management of Natural Resources and includes the Biodiversity 
Duty (S6). This part also sets the context for policy and action for the Welsh 
Government and Natural Resources Wales. Part Two considers climate 
change and informs Welsh Government policy in this regard. 

 

9. LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE 

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT. 
 
9.1 The discussion of Natures’ Assets contributes to the Council’s priority to ‘build 

a sustainable County Borough’ as set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan 
2016-2020.  It will contribute to the discussions about the next Corporate Plan 
for the period 2020 to 2024, which is likely to contain further consideration of 
the Climate and Biodiversity Emergencies. 

 
9.2 Consideration of Natures Assets must reflect the five ways of working in the 

Well-being of Future Generations Act.  In particular, this must be a long-term 
consideration, focused on preventative and precautionary action.  It will 
contribute specifically to the Resilience and Global Responsibility goals of the 
Act, but in the longer term it could have implications for all the goals. 

 

10. CONCLUSION 
 
10.1 Members of the Climate Control Cabinet Steering Group are requested to 

consider the information presented in this report and provide their 
observations to Cabinet. 

 
 

Tudalen 20



   

References 
 

1. Biodiversity tour of Rhondda Cynon Taf 
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/PlanningandBuildingControl/Countrysi
de/Biodiversity/relateddocs/BiodiversityTourofRCTDocument.pdf 
 

2. Cwm Taf Well-being Plan evidence base 
http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/SharedFiles/Download.aspx?pageid=181&mid=4
44&fileid=37 

 
3. http://www.interlinkrct.org.uk/ 
 
4. NRW Carbon Positive project, Condition Based estimate of greenhouse gas 

emissions and carbon sequestration for NRW peatland habitats, Report No 
276. 

 
5. Town Tree Cover in Rhondda Cynon Taf Natural Resources Wales 

 

6. https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/Roadspavem
entsandpaths/SustainableDrainage/Sustainabledrainage.aspx 

 
7. J.W Veldman et al, Science 10.1126/Science.aay7976 (2019) ‘comments on 

the global tree restoration potential’ 
 
8. Nature 58 25-28, Lewis , 2 et al 2919 ‘restoring natural forests’- compares 

carbon storage of natural regeneration with planting 
 
9. Nature.com June 2019 Forests: questioning Carbon after restoration’ Fahan, 

M et al. 
 
10. English Nature: Carbon storage by habitat: review of the evidence of the 

impacts of management decisions and condition of carbon stores and 
sources (NERR043) 2012 

 
11. Office for National Statistics: UK natural capital: developing semi-natural 

grassland ecosystem Accounts 
 
12. https://collieryspoilbiodiversity.files.wordpress.com/2019/04/invertebrate-

conservation-value-of-colliery-spoil-habitats-2019.pdf 
 
13. https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/Roadspavem

entsandpaths/FloodAlleviation/LocalFloodRiskManagementStrategy.aspx 
 
14. https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/Roadspavem

entsandpaths/FloodAlleviation/FloodAlleviationSchemes/CwmamanFloodAlle
viationScheme.aspx 

 
 

Tudalen 21

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/PlanningandBuildingControl/Countryside/Biodiversity/relateddocs/BiodiversityTourofRCTDocument.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/PlanningandBuildingControl/Countryside/Biodiversity/relateddocs/BiodiversityTourofRCTDocument.pdf
http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/SharedFiles/Download.aspx?pageid=181&mid=444&fileid=37
http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/SharedFiles/Download.aspx?pageid=181&mid=444&fileid=37
http://www.interlinkrct.org.uk/
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/Roadspavementsandpaths/SustainableDrainage/Sustainabledrainage.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/Roadspavementsandpaths/SustainableDrainage/Sustainabledrainage.aspx
https://collieryspoilbiodiversity.files.wordpress.com/2019/04/invertebrate-conservation-value-of-colliery-spoil-habitats-2019.pdf
https://collieryspoilbiodiversity.files.wordpress.com/2019/04/invertebrate-conservation-value-of-colliery-spoil-habitats-2019.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/Roadspavementsandpaths/FloodAlleviation/LocalFloodRiskManagementStrategy.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/Roadspavementsandpaths/FloodAlleviation/LocalFloodRiskManagementStrategy.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/Roadspavementsandpaths/FloodAlleviation/FloodAlleviationSchemes/CwmamanFloodAlleviationScheme.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/Roadspavementsandpaths/FloodAlleviation/FloodAlleviationSchemes/CwmamanFloodAlleviationScheme.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/Roadspavementsandpaths/FloodAlleviation/FloodAlleviationSchemes/CwmamanFloodAlleviationScheme.aspx


   

Appendix one: Ecological Footprint  
 
 

 
‘What is an ecological footprint? 
Think of an economy as having an ‘industrial metabolism’. In this respect, it is similar 
to a cow in its pasture.  The economy needs to ‘eat’ resources, and eventually, all 
this intake becomes waste and has to leave the organism- the economy-again.  So 
the question becomes: how big a pasture is necessary to support that economy – to 
produce all its feed and absorb all its waste?  Alternatively, how much land would be 
necessary to support a defined economy sustainably at its current material standard 
of living?’ 
 
Our Ecological Footprint: Reducing Human Impact on the Earth: Mathis 
Wackernagel and William Rees 
 
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-04/ecological-and-carbon-
footprint-of-wales-report.pdf 
 

 

Tudalen 22

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-04/ecological-and-carbon-footprint-of-wales-report.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-04/ecological-and-carbon-footprint-of-wales-report.pdf


   

A more recent illustration is provided by Mike Berners Lee in the book ‘There is no 
Planet B’.  He calculates the travel miles possible using energy from a square metre 
of Californian land that is used for solar panels or growing wheat or willow grass. 
 

      Miles per square metre per year 
Electric Bike (PV)        21,243 
Electric train (passenger miles, PV)     4033 
Nissan leaf electric car (PV)      1081 
Tesla electric car (PV)       927 
Bike (bread powered)       45 
Walking (bread power)       22 
Airbus A380 (passenger miles biofuel from cellulose)   12 
Biodiesel trail (passenger miles, wheat powered)   5 
Biofuel car (willow powered)      5 
Horse riding (wheat fed horse)      3 
Biofuel car (wheat powered)      1 

Tudalen 23



   

Appendix Two: The Carbon Cycle and carbon storage 
 

From http://www.thinglink.com/scene/979054305975730178 
 
 

Primo Levi’s autobiography of short stories ‘The Periodic Table’ includes ‘Carbon’ 
as the final story. 

https://transitionnetwork.org/sites/www.transitionnetwork.org/files/CarbonStor

yByPrimoLevi.pdf 
 
 

Carbon stock average estimates by broad habitat 

 
Habitats    Carbon stock in soils Carbon stock in vegetation 

(t Cha-1
-)    (t Cha-1-) 

Dwarf shrub Heath   88     2 

Acid grassland   87     1 
Fen, mash and swamp  76     ? 
Bog     74     2 
Coniferous woodland  70     70 
Broad leaf,    63     70 
Neutral grassland   60     1 
Improved grasslands 59     1 
Arable and horticulture 43     1 
Coastal margins (UK) 48     ? 
 
From Natural England Research Report NERR043 

Tudalen 24

http://www.thinglink.com/scene/979054305975730178
https://transitionnetwork.org/sites/www.transitionnetwork.org/files/CarbonStoryByPrimoLevi.pdf
https://transitionnetwork.org/sites/www.transitionnetwork.org/files/CarbonStoryByPrimoLevi.pdf


RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CLIMATE CHANGE CABINET STEERING GROUP

19TH OCTOBER 2020

STRATEGIC AND LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLANS - THEIR POLICIES 
AND COMMITMENTS TO ENSURING HOUSING, TRANSPORTATION AND 

BUSINESS INFRASTRUCTURE MINIMISES THE CARBON FOOTPRINT

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PROSPERITY AND DEVELOPMENT

Author: Owen Jones, Development Services Manager – Planning Policy

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 The purpose of the report is to firstly set out what the Strategic 
Development Plan (SDP) and the Revised Local Development Plan 
(LDP), are required to address with regards to policies and commitments 
to minimise our Carbon Footprint.

1.2 Secondly, the report will set out the opportunities that will present 
themselves during the preparation and formulation of these plans, 
(particularly from an LDP perspective), to expand upon these standard 
requirements from an RCT perspective. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group:

2.1 Comment on the issues raised in this report, and in particular the 
discussion points set out in paragraphs 6.9 to 6.15

2.2 That the feedback and comments of the Steering Group are reported to 
Cabinet for their consideration.

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 The considerations in the report are those that need to be developed 
further as part of the Climate Change responsibilities and aspirations of 
Rhondda Cynon Taf, whilst they also need to be incorporated into the 
statutory revision process for the Revised LDP .

4. BACKGROUND

Tudalen 25

Agendwm 4



4.1 Rhondda Cynon Taf agreed on the 27th of November 2019 to progress 
with the preparation of a Revised LDP for the County Borough. This is to 
be further agreed by Welsh Government (WG), to formally begin the 3.5 
year preparation process to its adoption at the end of 2023. Due to the 
coronavirus pandemic, it was not possible to begin the preparation of the 
Revised LDP in June as agreed, with an alternative starting date 
currently being considered. As an authority, we have also agreed on 31st 
July 2019, to be part of the preparation, the governance arrangements 
and contribute financially to the Cardiff Capital Region SDP. To date, 8 
of the 10 authorities in the region have also agreed to this. 

4.2 If an SDP is not forthcoming in the shorter term, then the LDP will be 
required to take on board more strategic consideration of climate change 
and its associated planning policy. If the SDP is forthcoming, then they 
will be included in either as appropriate. Accordingly, this paper will 
continue, unless stated otherwise, on a basis of what is required within 
an LDP and then what we as an authority can propose to have included 
within our LDP. 

5. What is required in an LDP in relation to Climate Change and its 
Carbon Footprint 

5.1 There is a significant amount of policy and legislative requirements within 
the planning system, and in particular the preparation of statutory Plans 
(SDP’s/LDP’S), by both the Welsh and UK Governments in relation to 
Climate Change and our Carbon Footprint, the main elements of which 
are discussed below.

5.2 Legislation 

5.3 In June 2019, the Committee on Climate Change (CCC) requested that 
the Welsh, Scottish and UK Government reassess the UK’s long-term 
emissions targets following the publication of its paper Net Zero – the 
UK’s Contribution to Global Warming in May 2019.  In response, Wales 
accepted the CCC’s recommendation for a 95% reduction in greenhouse 
gas emissions by 2050 and committed to go further with an ambition to 
reach ‘net zero’ by 2050.  Given that all countries of the UK supported 
this, the Climate Change Act 2008 introduced an associated target 
amendment order in June 2019.

5.4 The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 also required Welsh Government 
(WG) to set new interim emission reduction targets by the end of 2018.  
Such interim targets relate to 2020, 2030 and 2040 and should be 
published c. two years prior to the interim date.  WG are committed to 
reducing emissions by 40% by 2020 (below 1990 levels) however this 
target was also set out in their Climate Change Strategy (2010).

Tudalen 26



5.5 WG have been committed to cutting emissions and transitioning to a low 
carbon economy for a number of years and in March 2019, published 
Prosperity for All: A Low Carbon Wales. The publication seeks to 
maximise wider benefits for Wales, ensuring a fairer, healthier and more 
equal society.  The plan pulls together 76 existing pieces of policy from 
across the Welsh Government, UK Government and the EU where 
decarbonisation is integrated either as a direct outcome or a wider 
benefit.  Some are new policy, such as the Renewable Energy Targets 
and improved policy in Planning Policy Wales (Ed. 10), where 
decarbonisation is a central pillar. 

5.6 The ambitions also stem from the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act’s seven well-being goals and five ways of working. The 
strategy also highlights the role the National Development Framework 
(which is the development plan prepared by WG for all of Wales) needs 
to play in driving sustainable growth and combating climate change by 
guiding strategic development over the next 20 years. 

5.7 National Development Framework

5.8 The Draft National Development Framework (NDF), released in August 
2019, also has tackling the causes and mitigating the effects of climate 
change as a key consideration.  Climate change is specifically 
mentioned in the NDF section on ‘Challenges and Opportunities’.  The 
plan acknowledges that climate change and the decline of biodiversity 
are global challenges that are the biggest issues faced by Wales.  It 
states that Addressing this is our greatest responsibility when 
considering the legacy we will leave for future generations and as a 
consequence we have declared a Climate Emergency (Welsh 
Government, 2019, p15).  

5.9 The NDF commits to decarbonising Wales, delivering healthy, resilient 
eco-systems, encouraging sustainable energy generation, responsible 
water resource management, contributing the success of the circular 
economy, seeking the production of zero carbon homes and 
encouraging sustainable travel. 

5.10 Any replacement LDP will need to reflect these targets in its vision, 
strategy, objectives and policies. This will be achieved by developing 
robust evidence in order to ensure that it can contribute to tackling 
climate change in a meaningful way.  It will need to be ensured however 
that any prospective allocations are viable and deliverable, with any 
proposed new requirements for low or zero carbon homes and 
contributions to CIL/S106. 

Tudalen 27



5.11 Planning Policy Wales

5.12 Planning Policy Wales (PPW) (Edition 10, December 2018) is then the 
key overarching planning policy document in Wales, giving policy for 
decision making at a national level, whilst also indicating what policy 
principles should be cascaded down into LDP, local level policy. PPW 
10 advocates making the best use of resources, which is one of its ‘key 
planning principles’.  The policy recognises that the planning system has 
a vital role to play in making development resilient to climate change, 
decarbonising society and developing the circular economy for the 
benefit of both the built and natural environment and to contribute to the 
well-being goals.

5.13 PPW encourages that the ‘proximity principle’ is applied to ensure that 
problems are solved locally and are not passed on to other places or 
future generations. It has a focus on strategic placemaking, using a 
spatial strategy to locate development to promote sustainable 
development.  This includes minimising the need to travel through the 
location of housing, services and employment. Additionally, PPW10 has 
introduced the Sustainable Transport Hierarchy, which Welsh 
Government require must be used to determine applications and when 
preparing an LDP. It prioritises walking, cycling and public transport 
ahead of private motor vehicles, though it does recognise that electric 
vehicles also play an important role in sustainable transport.  

5.14 Additionally, it promotes more sustainable travel choices, network 
management and demand management in order to increase physical 
activity, improve health and help to tackle the causes of climate change 
and airborne pollution. Paragraph 5.3 ‘Transportation Infrastructure’ 
states that the planning system should facilitate the delivery, 
decarbonisation and improvement of transport infrastructure in a way 
that reduces travel and the use of private vehicles. At 5.3.6 planning 
authorities must promote and facilitate the provision and decarbonisation 
of high quality public transport infrastructure.

5.15 Section 5.7 also seeks to ensure that all new development mitigates the 
causes of climate change in accordance with the energy hierarchy for 
planning. Reducing energy demand and increasing energy efficiency, 
through the location and design of new development, will assist in 
meeting energy demand with renewable and low carbon sources. This 
is particularly important in supporting the electrification of energy use, 
such as the growing use of electric vehicles (p89).  

5.16 Paragraph 5.8 ‘Renewable and Low Carbon Energy’ sets out that 
planning authorities should facilitate all forms of renewable and low 
carbon energy development. In doing so, planning authorities should 
seek to ensure their area’s full potential for renewable and low carbon 
energy generation is maximised and renewable energy targets are 

Tudalen 28



achieved. This would include the re-powering, Life Extension, 
Decommissioning and Remediation of the infrastructure.

5.17 Paragraph 4.1.39 encourages the use of Ultra Low Emission Vehicles 
(ULEVs), and the support of the provision of ULEV charging points as 
part of new development. Where car parking is provided for new 
non‑residential development, planning authorities should seek a 
minimum of 10% of car parking spaces to have ULEV charging points. 
Paragraph 4.1.42 Planning authorities should take a strategic approach 
to ULEV charging in their area and, where appropriate, develop policies 
in their development plan and specify local requirements.

5.18 The Council will need to take account of these and other policies 
expressed throughout Planning Policy Wales and ensure that it is 
translated (without repetition) down to the local level where appropriate.  

6. Revising the Rhondda Cynon Taf LDP

6.1 Revised LDP Preparation

6.2 The current RCT LDP (2011-2021) seeks to contain development within 
settlements and to identify appropriate new urban growth sites where 
required. Policies aim to reduce the need to travel by providing sites for 
employment and services as well as housing and promoting 
regeneration in sustainable locations. Planning policy also seeks to 
ensure high standards of amenity in all new developments as well as 
promoting active travel. This minimises damaging land-use change, 
which could affect carbon storage in soils, vegetation and trees. 

6.3 Whilst climate change is not a ‘new’ challenge, the way in which it is 
tackled does put many authorities into ‘unchartered waters’. Whilst 
legislation, policy and guidance in Wales and all over the UK is heavily 
focused on tackling the causes of climate change, in reality, there are 
very few proposed solutions.  As such, Rhondda Cynon Taf will need to 
be creative in responding to the challenges of climate change whilst still 
bringing forth viable development.  

6.4 The preparation of the Revised LDP over the next 3 years will be just 
that – a revision of the current Plan. This will identify the necessary 
growth of development up to 2030. However, all elements of the Plan 
will need to be fully re-evaluated through the official preparatory stages 
from Visioning (including the identification of aims and objectives), 
Preferred Strategy and then the Deposit (Draft) Plan. Each of these 
stages will need to ensure that the progressive and current climate 
change legislation and associated planning policy, as discussed above, 
are appropriately addressed

Tudalen 29



6.5 It is through these preparatory stages that all stakeholders can propose 
how we take forward the Climate Change and Carbon Neutral 
associated aims and proposals, beyond the current planning policy 
standard requirements. The vision, aims and objectives of the plan may 
influence an amended LDP Preferred Strategy in the first instance, with 
more emphasis on the climate change agenda, more so than perhaps 
existing sustainable development growth. 

6.6 Policies can then be prepared and formulated that give local 
distinctiveness and aspirations to Climate Change, albeit ensuring that 
they are led by clear evidence for need and realistic deliverability. 
Similarly, the identification of suitable sites for allocation for the 
necessary land uses e.g. housing, employment, retail, leisure etc follow 
nationally prescribed and our own bespoke standards. This is in relation 
to the amount, type and in particular, their location.

6.7 A series of groups will be involved in the preparation of the Revised LDP, 
including community councils, community groups, the public, key 
consultees such as NRW, Cadw, Coal Authority etc, private developers 
and commercial bodies amongst others. 

6.8 All Elected Members will be given their opportunity to have a say on the 
LDP at various stages, and we are currently in the process of creating a 
specific RCT Members Forum through the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, to make a formal contribution to the preparation stages of 
the Plan. It may be appropriate that members from this group propose to 
sit on this Forum, or otherwise ensure close consultation between the 
two.  The group itself can contribute at various stages as appropriate 
through consultation events and stages. 

6.9 Considerations for the LDP for the Climate Change Group to 
Contribute To

6.10 Throughout the forthcoming early preparatory stages of the Revised 
LDP, there are a number of areas/topics that can be researched further 
with regards to their relationship with Climate Change and Carbon 
Reduction; and ultimately considered for inclusion within it. Some 
questions that the group could consider further at this point include:

 What percentage of car parking spaces should have charging points in 
new non-residential developments?

 Should there be a similar policy for new residential developments?
 Should all new homes in RCT be built as zero carbon?
 What is the role of RCTs uplands in combating Climate Change
 What is the group’s view on the density of development around Metro 

nodes and car free policies on new development?

Tudalen 30



6.11 What percentage of car parking spaces should have charging points in 
new non-residential developments?
National policy suggests a requirement for new non-residential 
development to seek a minimum of 10% of car parking spaces to have 
ULEV (electric) charging points. There is nothing to prevent the Council 
from being more ambitious in this area and formulating higher standards. 
However, it should be emphasised that any policies proposed will need 
to be based on robust evidence and will need to be measureable in terms 
of implementation/success and be commercially deliverable. 

6.12 Should there be a similar policy for new residential developments?
Why shouldn’t all new homes be provided with at least one dedicated 
outdoor, weather proof electric vehicle charging point? Cost is one issue 
that needs further investigation as the viability of house building in some 
parts of RCT is already marginal but that’s not to say the starting position 
in the LDP is to seek to achieve such a policy. Consideration needs to 
be given to whether any technicalities are specified in the policy given 
that technologies can change rapidly over time. Consideration also 
needs to be given to the level of charging points in communal parking 
spaces.

6.13 Should all new homes in RCT be built as zero carbon?
Although building control standards are currently being considered by 
Welsh Government, there may be further opportunity to seek that new 
homes are built towards zero carbon or at least a performance above 
the current building regulations. It is important to consider what should 
the definition of zero carbon be in the LDP insofar as it relates to new 
homes?

 Does it apply only to ‘regulated energy’ - those fixed and integral 
services and fittings in the home such as the space heating, hot water, 
ventilation and lighting - or also to ‘unregulated energy’ including things 
a developer can’t as easily control such as those used through plug-in 
appliances and cooking?

 Does it relate to just a home’s day-to-day operational energy use or to 
life-cycle carbon emissions, including that embedded in its 
construction?

 Does it apply to each home individually, or development-wide (or by 
phase for larger schemes), whereby some homes may not need to 
meet the standard, if the development as a whole does?

 Does it include or exclude potential off-setting arrangements where the 
homes themselves might not be zero carbon, but offset payments have 

Tudalen 31



been made (for example into a fund to allow the Council to improve 
energy efficiency in older housing stock)?

Zero carbon might refer to all or any of these but its meaning will have 
implications for the form of development and its viability. 

 
6.14 What is the role of RCTs uplands in combating Climate Change

Historically, development plans such as the LDP have focussed on 
managing development in and around urban areas with little more than 
a presumption against development in areas such as the uplands of 
RCT. However, more consideration will need to be given to the value of 
these areas and the role they can play. For example, our upland peat 
bogs have a significant role in carbon storage but also a potential role in 
managing water storage for flood prevention - are these roles mutually 
exclusive? The upland areas have significant potential to support wind 
and solar energy development but these developments along with their 
associated infrastructure have the potential to compromise the hydrology 
of the peat bog ecosystem. The intrinsic quality of our uplands has the 
potential to support a significant increase in the tourism economy in RCT 
so what considerations will the LDP need to balance the benefits to the 
local economy from increased development and visitors in the uplands 
alongside the potential detrimental impacts this could have on the 
environment.

6.15 What is the group’s view on the density of development around Metro 
nodes and car free policies on new development?
The LDP will certainly need to take into consideration the Cardiff Capital 
Region City Deal Metro and electrification of the South Wales Central 
Valley Line. Not only should this improve air quality from current rolling 
stock, but we must also capitalise on this investment. All opportunities 
should be sought to identify land for development around these public 
transport nodes. Furthermore, these are often located within existing 
urban centres. However, the density of development in towns has long 
been a point of contention in the determination of planning applications 
with space standards and the level of off street parking in particular being 
regular reasons for refusal of applications for new flats and apartments. 
The views of the group on how the LDP should balance these issues 
would be welcome.

6.16 Listed in Appendix 1 of this report, below, are summaries of Plans and 
Policies of other Local Authorities relating to this Climate Change and 
carbon reduction agenda. As this Appendix indicates, there are relatively 
few examples across the UK of such good practice, although it is not so 
say that this list is an exhaustive one. 

7 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

Tudalen 32



7.1 There are no equality or diversity implications as a result of the 
recommendations set out in the report.

8 CONSULTATION / INVOLVEMENT

8.1 The views of this Steering Group will make an important contribution and 
inform the deliberations of Cabinet, whilst also informing the preparatory 
and consultation stages of the revision of the LDP.

9 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)  

9.1 It is considered that any financial implications from this report will be 
associated with the formulation of the required evidence base for the 
preparation of the Revised LDP.  

10 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 

10.1 The proposals will be considered through the preparation process of the 
statutory revision of the LDP.

11 LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE 
WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT.

11.1 Preparation of the revised LDP will embrace the principles of the 
Corporate Plan, along with the wellbeing goals and five ways of working 
as identified within the WBFG Act. The revised LDP will also be guided 
by the aims and objectives set forth in the Cwm Taf Well-being Plan 
2018-2023 entitled Our Cwm Taf. The revised plan will also be 
influenced by the cultural, economic, environmental and social well-
being goals and objectives within Our Cwm Taf, where they relate to 
land-use planning.

12 CONCLUSION

12.1 Members of the Climate Control Cabinet Steering Group are requested 
to consider the information presented in this report and provide their 
observations to Cabinet.

Tudalen 33



Appendix 1 – Examples of other Authority’s Plans and Policies.

Swansea Local Development Plan

Swansea Council adopted the Local Development Plan (LDP) for their area in
February 2019, and forms the statutory development plan for Swansea 
Council. It promotes a placemaking agenda and the WG well-being objectives. 
Some policies contained within the LDP specifically make reference to 
decarbonisation or carbon neutral ambitions, as detailed below; 

 Chapter 1 – Plan Strategy details greater resilience needs to build into 
energy supply, and energy efficiency needs to be promoted as a 
means of supporting decarbonisation. Locally identified energy 
infrastructure and renewable energy generation to help meet carbon 
reduction requirements, such as Swansea Bay tidal lagoon. 

 Strategic Objectives 6 – Encourage appropriate development of low 
carbon and renewable energy resources and energy infrastructure. 

 Policy PS 2 Placemaking and Place Management includes criteria that 
developments should: “Maximise opportunities for sustainable 
construction, resource efficiency and contributions towards increased 
renewable or low carbon energy generation”

 Policy SD 2 Masterplanning Principles includes development should 
“integrate opportunities where appropriate to minimise carbon 
emissions associated with the heating, cooling and power systems for 
new development”

 Policy ER 1 Climate Change includes development proposals should 
take into “reducing carbon emissions” and “promoting energy and 
resource efficiency and increasing the supply of renewable and low 
carbon energy”. The policy expands to say a reduction in carbon 
emissions will be achieved by means of controlling the energy demand 
associated with development through maximising energy efficiency. 
Secondly, sustainable sources of energy should be incorporated, 
without reliance on fossil fuels. Information about carbon sinks acting 
as a means of off-setting carbon emissions by natural means. 

 Policy EU 1 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Proposal sets out the 
criteria for low carbon energy development. 

 Policy EU 2 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Technology in New 
Development. Development will be required to maximise the 
contribution of renewable or low carbon energy technology to meet the 
energy demands of the proposal, particularly for Significant Energy 
Consuming Developments. 

Swansea Council operate Ultra Low Emissions Vehicles for their public sector 
fleet. 

Tudalen 34



Merthyr Tydfil LDP

Key issues identified as part of the LDP include the quality and energy
efficiency of the existing housing.
 
Home energy use is the primary cause of local Green House Gas emissions. 
Carbon budgeting is set to drive demand for renewable and low carbon 

energy.

The LDP makes clear that the plan can’t deliver all local wellbeing outcomes, 
as many issues extend beyond ‘land-use planning’ influences. However, the 
LDP contributes to creating the right conditions to support their delivery. 

LDP Objective 6: ‘Sustainable Design’ To promote high quality, sustainable 
and inclusive design and support measures which mitigate the predicted 
effects of climate change. The plan objectives will help deliver on the vision, 
and have been identified with regard to local issues raised through
consultation. 

LDP Objective 7 Transport: To support an integrated transport system, 
promote active travel and ensure new developments are accessible by 
walking, cycling and public transport links.

LDP Objective 16 Renewable Energy: To promote renewable and low carbon 
energy.

Renewable energy presents an opportunity to reduce carbon emissions and 
generate income. The Plan has been informed by a Renewable Energy 
Assessment (2017) that has identified areas of opportunity. Contributing 
towards renewable energy generation is supported by the Plan through the 
inclusion of positive policies for renewable energy and the identification of 
Heat Priority Areas, where opportunities for district heating could be exploited, 
and Local Search Areas for solar energy. A local contribution target towards 
renewable energy production is also included in the Plan’s monitoring 
framework.

Joint Transport Plan for South West Wales 

New technologies for electric vehicles could lead to a step change in 
connectivity and function and form of transport networks. Swansea and 
Carmarthenshire authority areas have introduced electric vehicles fleet for 
council use. Scheme proposals to implement a network of electric vehicle 
charging points across South West Wales. 

London Borough of Merton – Case Study

In 2003, Merton introduced a planning policy that required all new build 

Tudalen 35



developments to generate 10% of their electricity from on-site renewable 
sources. This has been adopted further across the UK and is known as the 
‘Merton Rule’. 

The local plan includes sustainability standards, such as an overarching policy 
that sets out “new development should be designed to minimise emissions 
arising throughout their lifetime”. The plan also includes a Policy EP H6 
Environmental Protection which sets out how proposals must contribute to 
improving air quality and applicants must investigate the feasibility of CHP and 
district heating schemes. 

Climate change and energy performance is detailed as information that should 
be provided in support of planning applications to Merton Council. An energy 
strategy should be provided for each site that demonstrates environmental 
improvements. 

Merton Council declared a Climate Emergency, and is in the process of 
developing a Climate Change Action Plan for the council area. The council 
has also previously produced a Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan 
2014-2017 that sets out how the council intends to tackle climate change. The 
strategy includes areas such as energy, planning and development, 
sustainable resources and the natural environment. 

Tudalen 36



 
 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE CABINET STEERING GROUP 

 
16TH NOVEMBER 2020 

 
REDUCING THE USE OF SINGLE USE PLASTICS IN ALL COUNCIL 

CONTRACTS AND PREMISES 
 

INTERIM REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES, IN 
DISCUSSION WITH THE CABINET’S CLIMATE CHANGE CHAMPION 
(COUNCILLOR RHYS LEWIS) 
 
Author: Gemma Ellis - Procurement Manager (Operations & Projects) 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

 
The purpose of this report is to: 

 
1.1 Provide members of the group with an overview and update of the work that is 

underway following the report presented to the Climate Change Cabinet 
Steering Group in December 2019. 
 

1.2 Report on the progress made in respect of the in-depth audit on those 
categories of spend where single use plastics are currently in circulation. 
 

1.3 Provide an Action Plan aimed at reducing or where it is practical to do so 
eliminating the use of single use plastics across the Council by the end of 2020. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
It is recommended that members of the Group: 
 

2.1 Acknowledge the impact that Covid-19 has had since the previous report to the 
Group, on our ability to put in place and action tangible outcomes that aim to 
reduce the use of single use plastics within the timeframe set out in the previous 
report. 
 

2.2 Agree the action plan provided in Appendix A that sets out the arrangements to 
eliminate/reduce the use of single use plastics across the Council. 
 

2.3 Note the intention to remove all single use plastics from Council and School 
catering facilities by 31 March 2021 with an environmentally friendly alternative.  

 

Tudalen 37

Agendwm 5

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ClimateChangeCabinetSteeringGroup/2019/12/18/Reports/Item6EliminationofSingleUsePlasticsinallCouncilcontractsandpremises.pdf


 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 Within the previous report, the concept of the Waste Hierarchy was introduced. 
Those areas where single use plastics were identified as being in use were set 
out, along with some lessons learnt having identified some instances of 
alternative products having been piloted. The following actions were listed: 
 
ACTION 1 
Undertake a full audit of the categories of spend, with the aim of 
quantifying volumes.  
 
ACTION 2 
Review this data and overlay the Waste Hierarchy principles. 
 
ACTION 3  
Report back following the in-depth analysis, and propose appropriate 
solutions that support the objective.  
 

3.2 Whilst the interruption that resulted from the Covid-19 outbreak has hindered 
the full implementation of the planned work, the intention of this report is to 
provide an interim update on the activity to date and plan for the future in 
respect of supporting the Council’s ambitions to eliminate/reduce its use of 
single use plastics. In support of this, the main body of this report has been split 
into the following sections: 

 

 Update on the audit of single use plastics  

 Action Plan – including potential ‘quick wins’ 

 The next steps 
 

4. UPDATE ON THE AUDIT OF SINGLE USE PLASTICS 
 
4.1 In order to deliver an effective strategy that aims to reduce the quantity of single 

use plastics within our systems in a pragmatic way, the first stage has been to 
undertake a full audit of where single use plastics are in use, through the 
analysis of purchases made by the Council’s diverse range of service areas.  
Initially, we have focused our efforts on the food and catering sector of the 
Council’s business, as this is considered to be an area of high usage. 
 

4.2 The Council’s e-procurement system was used to collate this information, to 
target order quantities and cross reference with reports directly from suppliers.   
 

4.3 The service areas responsible for purchasing these items have also been 
engaged to determine the reason for purchase, and if the items can either be 
avoided, or a whether suitable (and sustainable) alternatives can be sourced. 
 

Tudalen 38



 
 

4.4 As part of the work completed to date, engagement has also taken place with 
relevant Cabinet Members to inform them of the milk carton recycling scheme 
in primary schools, and to gather ideas from them in respect of the most 
effective way to engage with school children. 
 

4.5 The results of our analysis are summarised in Tables 1a and 1b below (these 
figures relate to the 2019/20 financial year). Note that further work is required 
across all of the other categories. 

 
TABLE 1a - top single use plastic items (non-schools, food and catering 
sector) 

 

Non-Schools 19/20 

Item Total 

7oz Cold Water Cup  42,000 

Std Plastic Knife 2,000 

Std Plastic Fork 5,000 

Std Plastic Stirrer 5,000 

Food Box 1,800 

4oz White plastic Dish 1,000 

Oval salad Pack 3,000 
 

TABLE 1b - single use plastic items being purchased by comprehensive 
schools (food and catering sector) 

 

Comprehensive Schools 19/20 

Item Total 

Straws  4,000 

7oz Cold Water Cup  63,000 

Plastic Lids on food containers 35,250 

Plastic Knife 35,000 

Plastic Fork 305,000 

Plastic Spoon 37,000 

Plastic Tea Spoon 20,000 

Clear Container with Lid 11,000 

Clear Container no lid 37,000 

Salad containers 5,000 

 
4.6 This data has been used to focus our efforts on identifying potential quick wins 

/ alternative products. Please refer to Section 5 and Appendix A. 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 39



 
 

5. ACTION PLAN – INCLUDING POTENTIAL QUICK WINS 
 
5.1 The results of the audit now enables us to set out clear actions in respect of the 

food and catering sector. A draft Action Plan has been provided in Appendix A. 
 

5.2 The Action Plan identifies those areas where more audit work is required, 
includes some ‘quick wins’ in respect of putting in place suitable alternatives 
and also includes a new area that has resulted from the impact of Covid-19, the 
use of plastics in PPE. 
 

5.3 It should be noted that in some instances the impact of Covid-19 on our 
suppliers has slowed our progress on discussions to offer alternative products 
and packaging. This is because supplier’s main focus during this time has been 
to ensure they can maintain their essential business.  
 

6. THE NEXT STEPS 
 
6.1 Having piloted the audit process, work will now commence to roll this approach 

out across all of the other categories listed within the action plan. In order to 
deliver this work and to implement change, the following next steps have been 
identified: 

 
ACTION 1 – Target completion date of 31 December 2020 

 Implement the actions listed in respect of replacing single use plastics in 
the food and catering sector of the Council’s non-school business 

o We will work with the relevant service areas and suppliers with 
the aim of implementing suitable alternatives. 

o When we secure suitable alternatives, all the single use plastics 
will be immediately removed from use and appropriately recycled. 

 
ACTION 2 – Target completion date of 31 March 2021 

 Begin to tackle the practice of single use plastics as listed within this 
report in the comprehensive school sector (note that the primary school 
sector will not be overlooked from this work). 

We will: 
o Work with schools and engage with their eco-committees with a 

view to establishing suitable alternatives. 
o Work with our suppliers to ensure suitable alternatives can be put 

in place. 
 

ACTION 3 – Target dates will be set for specific categories, as 
environmentally friendly alternatives are sought 

 Undertake work with the relevant service areas, schools and associated 
suppliers in respect of all other categories of single use plastics, as listed 
within Appendix A. 

Tudalen 40



 
 

o We will set-up a working group including colleagues from 
Procurement, Amgen, Waste and Education to review alternative 
options. 

 
ACTION 4 – Report on progress to a future meeting of the Climate Change 
Cabinet Steering Group. 

 
7. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS  

 
7.1 There are no equality and diversity implications as a result of the 

recommendations set out in the report. 
 
8. CONSULTATION  

 
8.1 There are no consultation requirements emanating from the recommendations 

set out in the report at this stage. 
 
9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)  

 
9.1 Currently, there are no direct financial implications as a result of the 

recommendations made within this report. 
 
10. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  

 
10.1 There are no legal or legislative implications emanating from the 

recommendations set out in the report. 
 

11. LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-
BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT  
 

11.1 This report seeks to set out the arrangements required to support the Council 
in reducing its use of single use plastics, in doing so the recommendations to 
reduce the impact the Council and its residents and businesses have on the 
environment and respond to the issues set out in the Committee on Climate 
Change Report – Net Zero. The future actions that arise as a result of the 
recommendations in this report will be considered by the Council’s Cabinet and 
it will take full regard to the seven national wellbeing goals. 

 
12. CONCLUSION  

 
12.1 This report sets out the activity that has taken place, together with the planned 

activity which aims to reduce and eliminate (where practicable) single use 
plastics across the Council. 

 
12.2 The Action Plan provided at Appendix A will now be used to track progress. 

 

Tudalen 41



 
 

12.3 The Council is committed to addressing this important issue, and progress 
reports will be presented to the Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group to 
ensure appropriate scrutiny. 

 
 
 

Tudalen 42



 
 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 

 
as amended by 

 
THE ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT, 1985 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE CABINET STEERING GROUP 

 
16TH NOVEMBER 2020 

 
Report of the Director of Human Resources 

Author: Gemma Ellis - Procurement Manager - Operations & Projects 
 

REDUCING THE USE OF SINGLE USE PLASTICS IN ALL COUNCIL 
CONTRACTS AND PREMISES 
 
Background Papers: None. 
 

Tudalen 43



 
 

 
APPENDIX A – ACTION PLAN FOR THE REDUCTION / ELIMINATION OF SINGLE USE PLASTICS 
 

Examples of single-use 
plastics in use / area to 
be reviewed 

Proposed actions 
Possible alternatives or 

solutions 
Timescale & 

Update on Progress 

 
Food and catering provision – non schools (for example hot & cold drink provisions at staff canteens, residential homes for 
the elderly, leisure centres, tourism establishments, internal and external events) 
 

Plastic Cutlery (knife, fork, 
spoon) 

 
Help raise awareness of these measures 
across the procurement leads within the 

Council’s business areas. 
 

Remove these items from the e-
procurement catalogue. 

 
This will prevent staff from being able to 

order them in the future. 
 

Help those service 
transition through the 
provision of steel cutlery for 
re-use and encourage staff 
to bring their own. 

November 2020 

7oz Cold Water Cup 

Remove these items from the e-
procurement catalogue. 

 
This will prevent staff from being able to 

order them in the future. 

 
Encourage the use of 
glass and/or provide 

reusable polycarbonate 
tumblers/beakers. 

 

November 2020 

T
udalen 44



 
 

 

Examples of single-use 
plastics in use / area to 
be reviewed 

Proposed actions 
Possible alternatives or 

solutions 
Timescale & 

Update on Progress 

Encourage individuals to 
use their own reusable 

water bottles. 
 

Plastic Straw 

Remove these items from the e-
procurement catalogue. 

 
This will prevent staff from being able to 

order them in the future. 

 
Review if absolutely 

necessary. 
 

If in the cases where 
straws are needed, change 

to Paper. 
 

November 2020 

4oz White plastic Dish 

 
Investigate the potential to remove this 

item, and if a suitable alternative is 
available. 

N/A November 2020 

Plastic salad bowls 

 
Investigate the potential to remove this 

item, and if a suitable alternative is 
available. 

 

N/A November 2020 

 
Food and catering provision – Comprehensive Schools 
 

 

T
udalen 45



 
 

 

Examples of single-use 
plastics in use / area to 
be reviewed 

Proposed actions 
Possible alternatives or 

solutions 
Timescale & 

Update on Progress 

We now have all of the 
data relating to the 
purchase of single use 
plastics within the food 
and catering 
arrangements in 
comprehensive schools. 

 
Use the data, and engage with Catering 
Services, suppliers, the schools and eco-
committees at schools to establish all 
potential options in respect of suitable 
alternatives. 
 
Ensure that the Primary School sector is 
also included. 
 

To be confirmed following 
in-depth consultation. 

Target Date of 31 March 
2021. 

 
Vending Machines 
 

 

 
Vending machines are in 
use across a number of 
Council establishments, 
such as offices, leisure 
centres and schools. 
 
The drinks for sale within 
these machines are 
traditionally provided in 
plastics bottles. 

 
Work with contractors and suppliers to 
find out more about their current 
packaging and to see if there are any 
plans to put in place a suitable 
replacement for plastic. 

Not applicable at this 
stage. 

To be confirmed. 

T
udalen 46



 
 

 

Examples of single-use 
plastics in use / area to 
be reviewed 

Proposed actions 
Possible alternatives or 

solutions 
Timescale & 

Update on Progress 

 

 
Cleaning / Janitorial Contracts 
 

 
Our establishments are 
currently cleaned by either 
the Council’s internal 
cleaning service, or an 
appointed contractor. 
 
Due to the nature of the 
cleaning products in use, 
they are often held within 
plastic containers. 
 

 
Work with contractors and suppliers to 
find out more about their current 
packaging and to see if there are any 
plans to make them more sustainable 
 
Through discussion with suppliers 
identify opportunities, for return/reuse of 
containers.   
 
Introduce antibacterial spray as opposed 
to antibacterial wipes. 
 

 
Not applicable at this 
stage. 

 

 
The Delivery of Packaged Supplies 
 

 
The Council receives 
delivery of supplies 
ranging from: 

 
Working with suppliers to reduce 
packaging wherever practicable. 

 
Not applicable at this 
stage. 

 

T
udalen 47



 
 

 

Examples of single-use 
plastics in use / area to 
be reviewed 

Proposed actions 
Possible alternatives or 

solutions 
Timescale & 

Update on Progress 

 

 Food 

 Stationery 

 I.T equipment 

 Office furniture 
 

 
Construction Projects 
 

 

 
All waste on construction 
projects is currently 
managed by appointed 
contractors. 
 

A full review of the Council’s standard 
terms and conditions, particularly around 
the management of waste in general is 
required to take place. 

Not applicable at this 
stage. 

 

 
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) 
 

 

Due to COVID19 the use 
of Personal Protective 
Equipment has 
significantly increased. 
 

A review of how items are currently being 
disposed of will be undertaken and 
reported. 
 

With the current Covid 19 
situation, it is not currently 
practical to review this 
matter. 

Currently in progress with 
reusable face coverings 
being provided to all 
school staff and pupils and 
Council staff. 

T
udalen 48



 
 

 

Examples of single-use 
plastics in use / area to 
be reviewed 

Proposed actions 
Possible alternatives or 

solutions 
Timescale & 

Update on Progress 

In most cases, these 
supplies single use plastic 
in nature, such as gloves 
and aprons.   
 

In place of disposable TypeIIR masks, 
the Council is currently putting in place 
re-usable face coverings where 
appropriate to do so. 
 
 

 
 

T
udalen 49



T
udalen w

ag



 

 

 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE CABINET STEERING GROUP 

 
16TH NOVEMBER 2020 

 
LOCAL PROCUREMENT OF SUPPLIES AND SERVICES  

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES IN DISCUSSION WITH 
THE CABINET’S CLIMATE CHANGE CHAMPION (COUNCILLOR RHYS LEWIS) 
 
Author: Marc Crumbie (Head of Procurement) 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

 
The purpose of this report is to: 
 

1.1 Provide the Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group with an update on the 
planned work that aims to ensure the local economy of the Council receives the 
maximum possible benefits from the Council’s procurement arrangements. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 It is recommended that the Steering Group: 

 
2.1 Agree with the approach of the Council advertising its tenders more clearly with 

the local market, and for the Procurement Service to challenge each tender at 
its early stage with a view to establishing if appropriate lotting would be 
applicable. 
 

2.2 That an update on these actions be presented back to the Group at a future 
meeting. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 

 
3.1 Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council is one of the largest Councils in 

Wales. In order to deliver the range of services that it is responsible for, it 
contracts with a large number of external organisations. The Procurement 
Service has a key role in supporting and enabling service areas to deliver 
economic, social, environmental and cultural outcomes through the contracting 
process. 

 
3.2 This report provides a brief overview of the regulatory requirements that the 

Council is legally obliged to follow, and provides a summary of spend that has 
occurred between the period of April 2019 and July 2020. 
 

Tudalen 51

Agendwm 6



   

3.3 The report goes on to identify those areas of work that are planned to take place 
to help ensure that the local economy gets the very most out of the Council’s 
procurement arrangements. 

 
4. REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 
 
4.1 All Public Procurement is governed by EU Treaty, EU Procurement Directives 

and UK Procurement Regulations. The Council has an obligation to comply with 
this Legal Framework and our Contract Procedure Rules set the framework for 
delivering our procurement activities.  
 

4.2 The overriding aim of an effective procurement process is to deliver value for 
money with effective outcomes. Underpinning all of our processes are the 
principles of non-discrimination, transparency and fairness. 

 
5. HOW MUCH IS CURRENTLY SPENT WITHIN THE LOCAL AREA 

 
5.1 Between the period April 2019 to July 2020, £302m was spent on goods and 

services. Table 1 illustrates how and where this spend is distributed. The 
analysis of this data was undertaken using the postcode of each supplier. 
 
Table 1 – Summary of spend 1st April 2019 to July 2020 
 
 

Region Spend Apr 19 - 
July 20 

 Spend Apr 19 - July 
20 

 Spend Apr 19 
- July 20 

Wales £201,304,462.96 SE 
Wales 

£194,384,244.99 RCT £76,042,892.58 

  North 
Wales 

£3,464,120.07   

  West 
Wales 

£3,456,097.90   

Outside of 
Wales 

101,486,074.23  £201,304,462.96   

 £302,790,537.19     

 
5.2 In respect of the money that is spent outside of the County Borough, it was 

previously agreed that an in-depth review of the Council’s top 50 suppliers 
(based outside of RCT) would take place. The necessary data was prepared 
and the survey compiled. Unfortunately the nationwide lockdown came just as 
the Service was ready to issue the communications to our suppliers / 
contractors. As a result of this, the in-depth review has not taken place. 
 

5.3 Whilst the previous report recommended that we undertake this in-depth 
exercise for the top 50, it is considered that this time would now be better spent 
looking forwards and ensuring that the positive outcomes when contracting are 
fully considered when preparing tender documents in future. The following 
sections of this report set out how we intend to deliver this ambition. 
 
 

Tudalen 52



   

 
6. WHAT WE HAVE LEARNED DURING THE PANDEMIC 

 
6.1 Whilst Covid-19 has and continues to have a significant impact upon the 

Council and its citizens, we learnt a lot about our local business community 
during the early stages of the pandemic. 

 
6.2 A number of local businesses answered the Council’s call for help and the First 

Minister’s ‘Call to arms’. During the early stages of March and April, local 
businesses diversified and turned their manufacturing processes to making, for 
example, hand sanitiser, PPE and signage. 

 
6.3 These areas of supply were a significant help during the initial crisis, but what 

we learnt was that the local market can adapt their processes for what we need 
– it was a simple case of demand being met with supply. The Council has never 
asked for help in that way before, but if we think about it now that things have 
settled, we were asking a very simple question – ‘can any businesses meet a 
specific demand?’. 

 
6.4 Whilst the Council is required, by Law, to follow a specific set of procedures that 

ensure all suppliers are treated fairly and with transparency, we need to 
advertise our tenders in more accessible areas. In addition, we can encourage 
our local businesses to think about whether they can diversify, to understand 
that they wouldn’t necessarily require previous experience in the field in order 
to submit a tender for example. The ability of businesses to diversify now, could 
help to ensure their longer term viability. 
 
We will: 

 Investigate the best method by which local businesses in the area 
receive notices that give details of tenders that are upcoming and 
also ‘live’ on our tendering portal. 

 

 In order to submit bids for work, some local businesses may 
require upskilling in this area. We will work with our partners in Sell 
to Wales and Business Wales to ensure that they can provide the 
advice and support needed. 

 
7. HOW WE CAN MAKE OUR CONTRACTS MORE ACCESSIBLE TO LOCAL 

BUSINESSES 
 

7.1 As mentioned previously, the Council is required to ensure fairness and 
transparency when undertaking its procurement activities. This means that we 
are not allowed to have or show favour in any way. What we can do however is 
make tenders more accessible. 

 
7.2 Some contracts may lend themselves to a different lotting structure. This means 

that when we look to scope individual tenders there may be options to split the 
works/supplies into specific lots rather than bundle them all together into one 
whole contract. This is not something new, for example the Council’s recent 
tender ‘Disabled Adaptation & Repair Framework’. The Framework was split 

Tudalen 53



   

into the lots shown in Table 2. The table also shows the number of tenders 
received along with the number of winning bidders for each lot: 
 

LOT 
Contractors  

Awarded 
Reserve 

list 

Estimated 
jobs per 
annum 

Estimated 
total value 
per annum 

 
Tenderers  

LOT 1 - General 
Building Work (Below 
£25,000) 

12 5 214 £2.4m 
16  

(16 sme’s) 

LOT 2 - General 
Building Work (Over 
£25,000) 

8 3 9 £300k 
13  

(13 sme’s) 

LOT 3 - Plumbing 
Work Only 

12 5 157 £1m 
19 

(19 sme’s) 

LOT 4 - Stair Lifts 
Only 

3 2 185 £647k 
5  

(4 sme’s) 

LOT 5 - Vertical Lifts 
Only 

3 2 16 £216k 
3 

(3 sme’s) 

LOT 6 - Minor Works 
of Adaption Up To a 
Value of £600   

5 3 1487 £400k 
11 

(11 sme’s) 

 
7.3 On this framework, tenderers were able to bid and be accepted for one or more 

lots. After award, work associated under each of the lots is allocated on an 
alphabetical rota basis. Due to the number of jobs, it continuously rotates 
resulting in regular allocation of work, whilst avoiding contractors taking on 
more than their capacity. 

 
7.4 The lotting structure was attractive to SME’s as the jobs are manageable and 

spread timing wise. The pricing strategy, with a fixed schedule of rates, means 
the contractors know before applying what they will be paid for the work, and 
that the job will be local.  
 
Moving forwards, we will: 

 Review each tender on its own merits to establish if it is suitable to 
be split / lotted. 

 
8. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 An Equality Impact Assessment is not required with regard to this report.  
 
9. CONSULTATION  
 
9.1 There are no consultation requirements at present with regards to this 

supporting report. 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
10.1 There are no financial implications aligned to the recommendations contained 

within this report.  
 

Tudalen 54



   

11. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
11.1 There are no legal implications as a result of the recommendations contained 

within this report.  
 
12. LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE 

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT. 
 
12.1 The future actions that arise as a result of the recommendations will be 

considered by the Council’s Cabinet and it will take full regard to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. 

 
13. CONCLUSION  
 
13.1. This report provides an overview of the Council’s contracting arrangements, in 

particular how the Council is able to demonstrate spend with our local suppliers 
(based on ‘postcode’ data). 

 
13.2. The Council is keen to explore the potential of how we can utilise local SME’s 

more, therefore work with the aim of identifying potential opportunities to 
introduce them into our supply chain in the future will take place. 
 
 
 
 

 

Tudalen 55



   

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 

 
as amended by 

 
THE ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT, 1985 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE CABINET STEERING GROUP 

 
16TH NOVEMBER 2020 

 
Report of the Director of Human Resources 

 
Author: Marc Crumbie (Head of Procurement) 
 
LOCAL PROCUREMENT OF SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 
 
Background Papers: None. 
 
 

Tudalen 56



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CLIMATE CHANGE CABINET STEERING GROUP 
UPDATE REPORT

                                 30 th SEPTEMBER 2020

CORPORATE ESTATES UPDATE REPORT ON 
ENERGY GENERATION AND RELATED ISSUES

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE ESTATES IN DISCUSSION 
WITH THE CABINET’S CLIMATE CHANGE CHAMPION (COUNCILLOR 
RHYS LEWIS)

Author(s): David Powell, Director of Corporate Estates and Steve Lock, 
Head of Energy Project Management.

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide an  update relating to the 
position of the work of the Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group up 
to 30/09/20. Following the suspension of various Council meetings as a 
result of the Flooding and Coronavirus situations, the Climate Change 
Cabinet Steering Group has not met since January 2020 and this 
update report provides details of the current situation with regards to 
the work underway on the development of renewable energy projects 
and certain other related issues. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Members;

2.1 Note the contents of this update report as part of the ongoing work of 
the Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group.

2.2 Agree to continue with ongoing discussions with third parties with a 
view to maximising the energy generation subject to the final Welsh 
Government carbon footprint calculator. 

2.3 Receive a further report in early 2021 providing a further update on 
progress.

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

Tudalen 57

Agendwm 7



3.1 The contents of this report provides background information and 
update on the current situation with regards to the issues covered by 
the Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group. It provides an update on 
the proposals for the Council to build and finance potential solar and 
wind schemes on Council or other public sector owned land that will 
make a significant contribution to the Council achieving its Carbon 
Neutral target. It also provides an update on some other areas which 
have relevance for the development of the renewable energy projects.

4. CURRENT ENERGY GENERATION STRATEGIES

4.1 Rhondda Cynon Taf Council has a long-established programme of 
investing in Energy Generation measures and this has included the 
installation of renewable Energy technology with over 100 Solar panel 
arrays being installed across both Schools and Corporate Buildings 
totalling 1.58 MW. 

4.2. In addition to the investment in Solar energy above there has also 
been progress on other initiatives;

 The Taffs Well Thermal Spring Project is currently underway 
and when completed will make use of renewable geo-
thermal/underground energy using water from the River Taff.

 Support was previously provided for the development of a 
community micro-hydro scheme at Clydach.

4.3   The Carbon Reduction Programme (formerly known as the Invest to 
Save Programme) for Financial Year 2020/21 has been approved to 
invest around £1.2m on energy and carbon reduction improvements, 
subject to resources being available. Furthermore, a list of other 
potential energy efficiency projects with longer viability periods has also 
been developed for further consideration and possible additional 
investment.

5. CURRENT RENEWABLE ENERGY PROJECTS SITUATION

5.1  The Corporate Estates Energy team has recently been investigating 
the potential of using RCT-owned land for the development of major 
renewable Energy projects for both Wind and Solar generation, with 
the assistance of the Welsh Government Energy Service. These are 
projects which would be primarily developed by Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Council and as such would both contribute to the increase in the 
renewable energy provision and carbon reduction in the area and also 
make a positive economic contribution to the financial situation of the 
County Borough which could then be invested in further related 
improvements or other services for the benefit of citizens.

Tudalen 58



5.2    As the first stage of this process a number of sites across RCT were 
appraised with regards to the various aspects of their viability. As a 
result of this process a number of sites were not taken forward to the 
next stage which involved a more in depth appraisal and detailed 
discussions with the electricity network provider Western Power 
Distribution and other interested third parties.

5.3   The projects which proceeded to the next stage of the process of 
evaluating the technical, financial and carbon reduction viability were;
 Project 1 - A 9 MW wind farm installation 
 Project 2 - A 9 MW wind farm installation 
 Project 3 - A 3 MW wind farm installation 
 Project 4 - A 6 MW solar farm installation 

 
           For these four projects various information has been obtained from 

Western Power Distribution (WPD) and further site analysis conducted. 
Each of them has been considered on both an RCT-only basis and 
also on a potential collaboration basis with third party organisations.   

5.4 For the Wind farm installations referred to in projects 1 & 2,  
discussions have also been held with National Resources Wales 
(NRW) with regards to the possibility of a joint development of larger 
wind farms and preferably with RCT Council taking the lead role via an 
arrangement to lease the relevant land from NRW to develop larger 
facilities. Prior to the last few months these discussions had not 
developed strongly but recent changes in NRW have led to more 
positive discussions about the viability of a direct relationship with RCT 
Council rather than the lesser option of access over NRW land (and 
therefore developing Wind turbines on current RCT land only). These 
outline discussions with NRW are expected to progress to an 
‘agreement in principle’ on the nature of the future relationship during 
the coming period with a clear picture of the technical and financial 
options for these two Wind farm sites.

There are several different scenarios for Projects 1 and 2 of the Wind 
farm projects both for RCT development only and for a combined RCT 
& NRW land development. If we are successful with NRW 
negotiations, the projects could increase from 9 MW to 16.45 and 15 
MW projects respectively. However, these would require significantly 
more investment but would almost double the energy generation which 
could significantly offset our carbon footprint for energy consumption 
across our built asset portfolio. 

Outline details of the various options for Projects 1 and 2 including the 
estimated development cost options, carbon benefits and related 

Tudalen 59



financial payback periods are given in Appendix 1. For example the 
largest RCT and NRW land combined option for both sites is for 31MW 
of Wind Power with 12 wind turbines (7 at Project 1 site  and 5 at 
Project 2 site) and this option would also generate an estimated 
Carbon Benefit of 25,739 Carbon Tonnes per annum.  

5.5 For the Wind farm Project 3 (currently based on a single 3 MW wind 
turbine) this was not initially progressed to the same level of 
investigative detail as the other two Wind Farm sites due to the Grid 
connection issues and the lesser scale of generation potential. 
However, further discussions have progressed with a third party which 
owns the adjacent private wind farm. These had focused primarily on 
building a single RCT Turbine next to the adjacent site but the third 
party have recently suggested some other options regarding potential 
partnerships on the site (including RCT investment) and these 
discussions are ongoing to fully understand the implications and 
viability. 

Outline details of the estimated development cost options and related 
financial payback periods are also given in Appendix 1.  For illustrative 
purposes the development of a single 3MW RCT turbine on the land 
adjacent to the third party site would also generate an estimated 
Carbon Benefit of 2,323 Carbon Tonnes per annum.  

5.6   For the Project 4 Solar Farm project there were substantial discussions 
with a potential third party partner whereby they would be supplied 
directly by a Private Wire arrangement. When these discussions were 
ceased by the potential third party it was then agreed that work on the 
Solar Farm option would proceed on an RCT only basis. This is 
continuing and a formal Grid connection application has recently been 
made to Western Power for a 5MW connection.

Outline details of the estimated development cost options and related 
financial payback periods are given in Appendix 1. For illustrative 
purposes the development of a 6 MW Solar Farm (with a 5 MW grid 
connection) on the Project 4 site would generate an estimated Carbon 
Benefit of 1,706 Carbon Tonnes per annum.  

5.7    As part of the ongoing preparations, Ecology study work has already 
been commissioned for the projects and has commenced for the 
Project 4 Solar Farm site and is being extended to Project sites 1 and 
2. This work can also be extended to the Project 3 site if the 
discussions with the third party progress satisfactorily.

Tudalen 60



5.8 A budget of £80K is available from existing resources to fund various 
investigations and necessary work to enable a report to be drafted with 
further details.  This report will include data regarding the optimum size 
of the installations, the energy outputs, the carbon reductions and 
financial information for capital expenditure, capital funding and 
revenue income generated.

6. POTENTIAL EXPANSION OF RENEWABLE ENERGY AMBITIONS 

6.1   Further work is also scheduled to look at those sites previously 
identified on the first stage list of RCT sites for Wind or Solar 
renewable generation but which were not progressed at that time to the 
next stage of the analysis. The work will include whether the sites could 
be made viable by the addition of other land on a purchase, lease or 
partnership basis and will be informed by the current liaison process 
with Western Power and the ARUP report on the electricity network in 
Rhondda Cynon Taf which is expected to be received in early October. 
This work was scoped just prior to the Flooding and Coronavirus 
situations and as such has been delayed but is due recommence 
shortly.

6.2     The feasibility of installing Solar generating car ports at RCT sites has 
also been examined with the specific possibility of a first installation 
trial at a Leisure Centre subject to the outcome of a feasibility study. A 
case study has been scoped and the larger of the two options has an 
estimated cost of circa. £528K based on a payback period of 16.8 
years and could generate 241,158kWh of renewable Solar Energy with 
a dedicated ‘Private Wire’ connection to the Leisure Centre. A 
feasibility study for this project has recently been prepared for final 
consideration. 

6.3  The potential of Battery storage and usage options will also be 
considered as part of the wider examination of technologies. We are 
specifically looking at the potential inclusion of battery storage as part 
of several larger roof top solar projects such as Rhondda Sports 
Centre and Ty Elai as part of the Carbon Reduction Programme 
referred to in paragraph 4.3 above. However the progression will be 
partially dependent on the costs at the design stage.

6.4 The potential of Hydrogen for fuel cells and vehicles is also being 
considered. Several meetings have taken place with Welsh 
Government about potential Hydrogen networks but costs are 
prohibitively high at this stage. 

Tudalen 61



6.5   The Taffs Well Thermal Spring project is well underway and both 
Planning permission and Natural Resources Wales approval have 
recently been received. Tenders have also been received and whilst 
the project costs were higher than originally estimated a process of 
design refinement has been undertaken which has reduced the cost. 
The current anticipated project cost is £326k. Completion is scheduled 
to be by March 2021 to coincide with the original end date of the 
Renewable Heat Incentive scheme (it has recently been extended for 
projects commenced by December 2020 but we are still awaiting full 
details of the revised conditions).

6.6    The potential of the various water resources within RCT is also currently 
being investigated and discussions regarding the future potential using 
Minewater have been held with Bridgend Council who have a large 
project already underway (which is largely externally financed). Other 
water/hydro projects which were previously regarded as not being 
viable many years ago could also be re-examined but this would 
probably require an external resource to undertake the work.

7. RENEWABLE ENERGY PROJECTS SITUATION AT AMGEN 
CYMRU

7.1 Amgen Cymru is a private limited company wholly owned by RCT 
Council. The Company delivers waste transport, treatment, recycling 
and disposal services to the Council and other customers within South 
East Wales. To date their main involvement in renewable energy 
production has come from the generation of electricity from Landfill Gas. 
This is a Biogas rich in Methane which is produced as a result of the 
breakdown of biodegradable waste within a landfill. This is considered to 
be a form of renewable energy and has historically qualified for the 
Renewable Obligation subsidy.

7.2 The power generation scheme at Bryn Pica has operated since 2003 
and has continued to contribute towards the replacement of regional 
electrical demand from fossil fuel sources. At its peak, the scheme 
exported 1.9 MW/hr of electrical energy, however the diversion of 
biodegradable waste from landfill in accordance with EU and regional 
government policy has resulted in a diminishing resource going forward. 
Current export rates are around 0.8 MW/hr and this is predicted to drop 
to 0.6 MW/hr by 2027. 

7.3 Estimates indicate that 1.2 – 1.4 MWs of redundant export capacity 
exists at Bryn Pica. In terms of potential future renewable schemes, this 
is an asset which the Company is keen to utilise and is currently working 
through technical and contractual complexities in this respect. This could 

Tudalen 62



facilitate reasonably rapid deployment of solar, wind or other generating 
technology commercially viable at that scale.

7.4 The Company also has a much smaller landfill generating station at the 
Nant-y-Gwyddon Landfill Site (closed in 2001). This is currently 
producing around 0.05 MW/hr. Previously power generation at the site 
peaked at 0.65 MW/hr and as such there is redundant export capacity at 
the site. Recent work done on the local electricity network has indicated 
that an export connection of 0.8 MWs could be provided at the site, with 
relatively minor expenditure. Amgen have been mindful of this benefit 
and has investigated the deployment of both wind and solar generation 
at the site. 

7.5   Discussions with ‘Infinite Renewables’ regarding the development and 
operation of a single wind turbine have progressed through Aug-20. 
Amgen Officers have meet with the developers to review civil 
engineering works required at the site in order to facilitate the 
construction work. RCT Corporate Estates are in the process of 
reviewing the land title and Amgen lease with a view to offering a 20 
year operating lease to the wind developer. Consideration has been 
given to the best form of such an agreement and it is proposed that 
RCTCBC will contract / lease directly with the wind developer and 
receive rental payments directly.

7.6 The Bryn Pica Facility is also home to the Tomorrows Valley Food 
Waste Treatment Plant, owned and operated by a private contractor, 
BioGen (Bryn Pica) Ltd. This facility operates using the Anaerobic 
Digestion technology and recycles separately collected food waste from 
RCT, Merthyr and Newport council. The AD Plant at Bryn Pica 
generates and exports electrical electricity with a capacity of circa 1 
MW/hr. In addition, the plant produces large volumes of waste heat a 
significant proportion of which is not currently being utilised for any 
beneficial purpose. 

7.7 In accordance with central government and regional government policy, 
Amgen has outlined a scheme for the potential utilisation of waste heat 
generated at the Bryn Pica facility. The potential carbon offsetting 
benefits of community and commercial / industrial heat networks has 
been clearly documented and can form part of the solution to reducing 
carbon emission. However, the technical and economic challenges of 
connecting heat producers to consumers has resulted in significant 
underdevelopment of heat networks within Wales and the UK in general. 
Working with the Council and Welsh Government Amgen are facilitating 
the development of an Eco Park on an area of undeveloped land at Bryn 
Pica. 

Tudalen 63



7.8 At the point of development this small industrial park will target 
commercial tenants operating within the sustainability sector (waste, 
recycling and energy sustainability), particularly those that can gain 
benefits from the use of waste heat and renewable electrical energy. 
The scheme has generated much interest to date and has been 
supported through outline development and site preparation by Welsh 
Government funding. Detailed design is currently ongoing and the 
project team is considering funding options for full build out costs.

8. OTHER ISSUES AND DEVELOPMENTS RELEVANT TO THE CURRENT 
RENEWABLE ENERGY SITUATION

8.1   Western Power Distribution Update 

RCT Council has had regular contact with Western Power Distribution 
(WPD) over many years but this contact has extended since the 
exercise to look at potential Renewable Energy project began in 2018.
More recently, in April 2020 we were contacted directly by WPD via the 
Chief Executive explaining how WPD wishes to ‘engage with all the 
Local Authorities within Wales in respect of energy planning to achieve 
the Government’s target of Net Zero carbon emissions by 2050’. This is 
related to the changing role of WPD in the next few years from a DNO 
Distribution Network Operator to a DSO Distribution Systems Operator. 
This will have substantial implications for their role in the overall 
electricity marketplace and as part of this they will have a more 
proactive role in managing local generation up into the network as well 
as their traditional role of managing large scale generation down 
through the network to users. 

As part of the process RCT has provided a considerable amount of 
information to WPD. The discussions with WPD have been very 
positive and there are firm plans for an ongoing dialogue process to 
provide mutual information and assistance. The first of these follow up 
meetings took place in July and also included a slot for ARUP. As part 
of this meeting WPD confirmed their commitment to ongoing dialogue 
and to provide ARUP with certain information that they would need to 
compile their report on the Energy network in the RCT Council area. 
(see 8.2 below). It was also agreed that the next meeting between RCT 
and WPD will take place once the ARUP report on the RCT Energy 
network has been finalised and received.
 

8.2  ARUP Update

Following consideration of the ongoing Energy network information 
requirements and the existing RCT resource, ARUP consultancy have 

Tudalen 64



been appointed to carry out a specific study of the Energy network in 
RCT, including its constraints, topography and opportunities. ARUP 
recently carried out a similar Wales–wide study for Welsh Government 
but it lacked specific information for RCT. This RCT specific study will 
follow similar principles but with an RCT level of granularity. The 
process is ongoing (including the joint meeting with WPD, and the 
information provided by, WPD to ARUP as referenced above in 
paragraph 8.1) and the report is expected in early October. This 
relationship should also offer RCT the facility to use this specialist 
additional resource as necessary such as to assist with a new review of 
Water/Hydro opportunities within RCT.

 
8.3   Welsh Government Energy issues update 

As part of the wider RCT Renewable Energy and Carbon neutral 
strategy there is an ongoing and useful relationship with the various 
aspects of the Welsh Government Energy Service (WGES). They have 
provided significant assistance at various stages of the Renewable 
Projects and RCT has also recently completed an application for 
further WGES assistance with a project to examine and identify the 
potential and costs of RCT moving to an Electric Vehicle Fleet option 
(known as ULEV).

The other current Welsh Government issue is the ongoing lack of final 
clarity on the Carbon Footprint calculator guidance and what criteria 
will be applied to which activities public sector bodies in Wales will be 
able to claim as being ‘Carbon beneficial’. The position is still being 
finalised by Welsh Government but the initial indication at this stage 
was that we may only be able to ‘claim’ Renewable Energy that is 
directly used. This stance would have significant implications and 
formal representations about our concerns have already been made to 
Welsh Government (as have some other Local Authorities). 

8.4    Cardiff Capital Region Energy Strategy

As part of the ongoing work of the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal 
team they have recently produced a Regional Energy Strategy. The 
overall objective of this strategy is to outline and develop a strategic 
pathway identifying key interventions to deliver on the Capital Region’s 
ambitions for decarbonising its Energy systems in order to meet Welsh 
Government targets, and to be on track for Net Zero by 2050.

The content of the report was outlined by the City Deal team on a 30th 
September meeting call to largely Energy-related staff across the City 
Region. With the support of the Welsh Government Energy Service 
they will be instituting a programme of briefings and information to the 

Tudalen 65



10 Local Authorities before formally presenting the Strategy to the 
Cardiff City Region Cabinet meeting in December 2020.

9.        EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 An Equality Impact Assessment is not required with regard to this 
report. 

10. CONSULTATION 

10.1 There are no consultation requirements at present with regards to this 
supporting report.

11. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

11.1 All existing ‘live’ projects are funded through relevant cost centres and 
an existing enabling budget so there are no further financial 
implications aligned to this interim report. 

12. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

12.1 There are no legal implications aligned to this report

13. LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE 
WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT.

13.1 The purpose of the report is to provide an update relating to the work 
of the Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group with regards to the 
work underway on the development of renewable energy projects and 
certain other related issues.  

           The future actions that arise as a result of the future recommendations 
of the Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group report will be 
considered by the Council’s Cabinet and it will take full regard to the 
seven national wellbeing goals.

14. CONCLUSION

14.1 This update report provides information relating to the work of the 
Climate Change Cabinet Steering Group meeting with regards to the 
work underway on the development of renewable energy projects and 
certain other related issues.  

Contact Officers; David Powell 01443 424144, Steve Lock 01443 281191

Tudalen 66



Appendix 1 – Potential Energy Generation Projects 

Tudalen 67



Appendix 1 – Energy Generation, Carbon Savings and Indicative Financial Information

Project Annual Energy 
Generation

(MW Hours)

Annual Carbon 
Reduction

(Tonnes)

Total Capital 
Investment

(£M)

Total Revenue 
Costs

(£M)

Total Income 
from Energy 
Generation

(£M)

Net Revenue 
Position 

(-Surplus/ +Deficit)
(£M)

1a 9MW Wind farm 
RCT only 21,374 6,515 15.406 29.804 (29.011) 0.793

1b 16MW Wind farm 
RCT & NRW 47,717 14,545 25.094 53.535 (64.766) (11.231)

2a 9MW Wind farm
RCT Only 22,033 6,716 14.207 28.200 (29.906) (1.706)

2b 15MW Wind farm
RCT & NRW 36,722 11,194 21.808 45.816 (49.843) (4.027)

3 3MW Wind farm
RCT Only 7,620 2,323 3.161 7.154 (9.685) (2.531)

4 6MW Solar farm
RCT Only 5,598 1,706 4.811 13.099 (15.771) (2.672)

Summary of RCT & NRW Projects

31MW Wind farms
RCT & NRW 84,439 25,739 46.902 99.351 (114.609) (15.258)

Notes and Assumption

1) Wind projects are evaluated over 20 years and solar projects over 35 years;
2) Total Capital Investment includes construction costs, grid connections, fees, contingency/risk and project management;
3) It is assumed that the Capital Investment will be funded (subject to approval) by prudential borrowing;
4) Total Revenue Costs include operating and maintenance costs, insurance, metering and electricity, business rates, systems 

costs and borrowing repayments;
5) Total Revenue Costs and Total Income from Energy Generation are whole life costs over the economic project lives, subject to 

inflation and show real prices (in cash terms) not adjusted to show net present values.

T
udalen 68


	Agenda
	2 Cofnodion
	3 Asedau Naturiol
	4 Cynlluniau Datblygu Strategol a Lleol - Eu Polisïau a'u hymrwymiadau i sicrhau bod Isadeiledd Tai, Trafnidiaeth a Busnes yn lleihau eu Hôl-troed Carbon.
	5 Lleihau'r defnydd o blastigau un-tro yn holl gontractau ac adeiladau'r Cyngor
	6 Caffael Cyflenwadau a Gwasanaethau yn Lleol
	7 Cynhyrchu Ynni a Materion Cysylltiedig

